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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
(For the Financial Year 2023-24)

To
The Shareholders

The Directors present the Annual Report of Kross Limited along with the Audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 31° March, 2024.

1) FINANCIAL RESULTS
CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
PARTICULARS (2023-2024) (2022-2023)
(Rs in Mn) (Rs in Mn)
Revenue from Operations 6202.50 4886.28
Other Income 12.14 7.29
Total Revenue 6214.64 4893.57
Total Expenses 5601.74 4,476.47
Profit Before Tax 612.90 417.16
Current Tax 154.89 100.80
Current Tax of earlier year 5.60 0.98
Deferred Tax 3.60 6.01
Profit After Tax 448.81 309.31
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 8.30 5.72
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OVER THE YEARS
Financial Years Sales (Rs in Cr) PAT (Rs in Cr) EBITA

2023 —2024 620 43.47 79.72

2022 - 2023 488.62 31.02 57.52

Percentage 28.8 % increase 40% increase 38.6% increase

(Increase/Decrease)

2) THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

year).

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of all types of components, parts, spare parts,
accessories for motor vehicles and also has specialization in Trailer Axle part. During the year under
review, the Company has posted an increase in revenue from operation over the previous year (total
revenue for the financial year 2023-24 is Rs. 6202.50 million as against Rs. 4,886.28 million in the
previous year). The profit after tax for the year has registered an increase over the previous year (profit
after tax for the financial year 2023-24 is Rs. 446.98 million as against 310.54 million in the previous

The Company’s Financial Statement along with the comparatives have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the (Companies
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Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended with the recognition and measurement principles
stated therein, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the relevant
Rules framed there under and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

3) DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any Dividend and hence there is no outflow of cash for the purpose of
Dividend for the FY 2023-24

4) ANNUAL DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149

The Company has received Annual Declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company
declaring and confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence u/s 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

S) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on Directors’ appointment
and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178]

The weblink of the policy is https://www.krosslimited.com/copy-of-financial-reports

6) EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE

Particulars Qualification/Reservation/Adverse Remark
Audit Report No qualification/Reservation/Adverse remarks
received
Secretarial Audit Report No qualification/Reservation/Adverse remarks
received
Particulars of Loan, Investment Guarantees u/s | Complied

186
Particulars of Contracts or arrangements with | Details is annexed in Form AOC — 2.
Related Parties

7) TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3)(j) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not transferred any amount to its General Reserves.

8) DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134 (3)(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The company has material developments during the year under review FY 2023 — 24.

1. Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) of INR 500 Cr

The Board Meeting held on 30" November 2023 has approved the filing of Draft Red Herring
Prospectus (“DRHP”’) with the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”’) and the Company has with
that decided to float an issue through Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) of INR 500 Cr consisting of INR
250 Cr through Fresh issue and INR 250 Cr through Offer for sale, the Company will utilize the issue
proceeds of Fresh issue of INR 250 Cr in the following objectives as mentioned in the DRHP (“Offer
Documents”);
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1. Funding of capital expenditure requirements of our Company towards purchase of machinery and
equipment;

2. Repayment or prepayment, in full or in part, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings
availed by

our Company, from banks and financial institutions;

3. Funding working capital requirements of the Company; and

4. General corporate purposes

2. Land Acquisition by the Company

The company has acquired a land covering a total area of 89,500 sq ft. situated at Plot Nos. B — 32, B —
33 & B — 34 phase — 3 Adityapur Industrial Area Jamshedpur from Tatanagar Wire Ropes Private
Limited and the company has also executed a lease deed agreement with Adityapur Industrial Area
Development Authority (AIADA) for the said land of 89,500 sq ft. on 09th February, 2024 for a
renewable Lease period of 30 (thirty) years. The company has further acquired Plot No 313, 314, 315,
316, Phase 5, Adityapur Industrial Area, Gamharia, Jamshedpur situated adjacent to our existing Plant V
and the total area covered is 1 acre.

3. Sub Division of Shares

The Company at its Board Meeting held on 26 October 2023 has approved the Sub division/Split of its
share capital from Rs.10 to Rs.5 which resulted changes in paid up share capital of the company i.e.
27046378 equity shares of Rs.10 each amounting to Rs. 27,04,63,780.00 was sub-divided/Split into
54092756 equity shares of Rs.5 each amounting to Rs. 27,04,63,780.00.

4. Bonus Issue

The Company at its Board meeting held on 09th November 2023 has allotted bonus shares of 13523189
at a ratio of 1:1 at a price of Rs.10 each amounting to Rs.13,52,31,890.00.

5. Appointment of Independent Directors

The company has appointed 4 (four) Independent Directors in the Board and various committees of the
Board vide its Board Resolution dated 26™ October 2023.

9) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The company has Unit I, II, III, IV, V and has around employees of nearly 2000 (Two Thousand)
personnel working all over with a mix of permanent and contractual basis.

10) STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. S.K. Naredi & Co. Chartered Accountants, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, have been appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office for a period of 5 years from the financial year 2022-
23 to 2026-27.

11) COST AUDITOR & COST RECORD

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Sohan Lal Jalan and Associates, Cost Accountant FRN-
000521), Kolkata, West Bengal as Cost Auditors for conducting the audit of Cost Records and Cost
Audit of the company for the financial year 2024-25 pursuant to Section-148 of the Companies Act,
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2013.

The Company has duly prepared and maintained the cost records of the business activities carried out by
the Company during the financial year 2023-24 as required pursuant to the provisions of section 148(1)
of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014.

12) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under M/s. Adarsh Kumar
Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary, M No-36486, C.P No-13658, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand was
appointed as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 at a remuneration
fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor. The report
of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is enclosed as Annexure to this report.

The Secretarial Auditor has the following observation in Form MR-3 which is enclosed as Annexure with
this report.

13) INTERNAL AUDITOR & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014 on the recommendation of Audit Committee the Board of Directors has re-appointed M/s GWC
Professional Services Pvt Ltd, Kolkata, West Bengal as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25 at a remuneration fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the
Auditors.

The Internal Audit Report does not contain any qualifications reservation or adverse remarks.

14) EXPLANATION TO AUDITORS REPORT

The observations of the auditors in their report are self-explanatory and needs no further explanation.
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report which requires any
clarification/explanation pursuant to section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

15) SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 2023-24 the three was increase in the Authorized Share Capital of The
Company of 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees fifteen crore) equity share capital consisting of 1,50,00,000 equity
shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten only) each to Rs. 37,00,00,000/- (Rupees thirty-seven crore)
consisting of Rs. 35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Five crore) equity share capital divided into Rs.
3,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten only) each and addition of Rs.
2,00,00,000 /- (Rupees two crore) preference share capital divided into 20,00,000 preference shares of
face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten only) each.

PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 2023 - 24, the paid-up share capital of the company has changed from
Rs.13,52,31,890 (13523189 eq shares of Rs 10 each) to Rs. 27,04,63,780.00 (54092756 equity shares of
Rs 5 each) due to bonus and sub-division of the share capital of the company during the year 2023 - 24.

BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
During the financial year 2023-24, there were no buy back of shares.
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SWEAT EQUITY
During the financial year 2023-24, the company has not issued sweaty equity shares.

RIGHTS ISSUE
During the financial year 2023-24, the company has not issued equity shares on right basis.

16) BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2023-24, 12 (twelve) Board Meetings were held:

(i) 04" May, 2023
(i)  01°" June 2023
(iii) 28" June 2023
(iv) 28™ July 2023
(v)  01% August 2023
(vi) 04™ September 2023
(vii) 27" September, 2023
(viii) 30th September, 2023
(ix) 21* October 2023

x) 09" November 2023
(x)
(xi) 30™ November 2023
xii) 21% March, 2024
(xii)

17) SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to “Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

18) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted according to the requirement of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and had an
appropriate number of Executive Director and Non-Executive (Independent Directors).

Present Board consist of below mentioned Directors:
. Sudhir Rai-Chairman and Managing Director

. Anita Rai-Whole Time Director

. Sumeet Rai- Whole Time Director

. Kunal Rai- Whole Time Director

. Sanjiv Paul — Independent Director™

. Gurvinder Singh Ahuja — Independent Director™®

. Deepa Verma — Independent Director*

. Mukesh Kumar Agarwal — Independent Director*
. K Suresh Babu — Executive Director**

O 003N N~ W~

*During the financial year 2023-2024 all Independent Directors were appointed vide board resolution dated 21 October, 2023 and in
Extra Ordinary General dated 26™ October 2023.
** K Suresh Babu ceased from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 215" October 2023.

19) COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS

The Company has following committees constituted at the Board meeting dated 21 October, 2023;
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Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Risk Management Committee

nk W=

20) WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Company is having website, www.krossindia.com and the annual return of the company is published
on such website at https://www.krosslimited.com/coming-soon-03

21) PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not accepted any deposit pursuant to the Section 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

22) PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has complied in respect of loan, guarantee or
investment pursuant to the section-186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

23) SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company is not having any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or
Associate Companies.

24) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties,
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, entered by the company during the financial
year 2023-24 were complied. Form AOC-2 attached.

25) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section-134(3)(0) of the Companies Act, 2013 the brief details about the companies CSR
Policy by the company and initiative taken by the company during the year is attached in CSR Report
attached to this Board Report

26) DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Director’s Confirm:

1) That in preparation of annual accounts for the year 2023-24; the applicable accounting standards
have been followed.

i1) That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit/loss of the company for that period.

ii1) That proper and sufficient care had been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Page 6 of 29




iv) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

v) That they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi) That they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

27) ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

a) Conservation of Energy:
During the year there was no major capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

b) Technology Absorption:
No specific technology has been absorbed or adopted during the year.

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Earning: Rs. 70.10 mm (Export) Outgo: Rs. 380.90 mm (Import)

28) SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. During the year 2023-2024, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual
harassment.

29)DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No adverse orders or rulings of any Court or Tribunal or Regulator were passed which would impact
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future between end of the financial year of the
Company and the date of this report.

30) CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS. IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company carried on during the year as
compared to the previous year.

31) INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The company has effective internal financial control systems commensurate to its size in regard to
preparation of financial statements. The same are being reviewed at periodic intervals to assess any
weakness and if found are redressed immediately.

32) DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year.

33) DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF

T
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As Company has not done any one-time settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure
is required.

34) RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The company is exposed to inherent uncertainties owing to sectors in which it operates. A key factor
in determining a company’s capacity to create sustainable value is the risks that company is willing to
take (at strategic and operational levels) and its ability to manage them effectively. Many risks exist in
a company’s operating environment and they emerge on regular basis. The company’s risk
management policy and processes focus on ensuring that these risks are identified on a timely basis
and addressed. The entire policy and process of risk management of the company is being looked after
by the Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors.

35) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

The company has a policy for “Performance Evaluation for Board of Directors” and the annual
evaluations are done through feedback of the board and internal discussions.”

36) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board acknowledges the support of the valued Customers and Employees for their continued
patronage and also places on record its sincere thanks to them. The Board also expresses its deep
senses of appreciation to all employees of the Company for their strong work ethics, excellent
performance, professionalism, teamwork, commitment, initiative and co-operation received from
Independent Directors, Banks, Shareholders, Suppliers and Customers which has led to the company
progress in today’s challenging environment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Chairman and Managing Director
Sudhir Rai
DIN: 00512423

Place: Jamshedpur On behalf of the Board of Directors
Dated: 15/05/2024 KROSS LTD
Director
Anita Rai

DIN: 00513329
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CIN : U29100JH1991PLCQ04465

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2024

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN U29100JH1991PLC004465

2. Registration Date 09/05/1991

3. Name of the Company | KROSS LIMITED

4. Category/Sub-category | Company limited by Shares/ Non-Govt Company
of the Company

5. Address of the M-4, PHASE VI, ADITYAPUR INDUSTRIAL AREA
Registered office & JAMSHEDPUR, JHARKHAND-832108
contact details 0657-2203812

6. Whether listed Unlisted
company

7. Name, Address & *KFin Technologies Limited
contact details of the Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32, Financial District
Registrar & Transfer Eanal.(r.amgud.a, Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad - 500032

. -mail: murali. m@kfintech.com

Agent, if any. M: +91 9177401071

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) —

S. No. Name and Description of main | NPS Code of the | % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1 Bodies for motor vehicles, 99611812 97

trailers & semi-trailers, parts
and accessories thereof

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (No. of
companies for which information is being filled) N.A

NAME AND HOLDING/ o
S1. No ADDRESS OF THE CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ SHI/:RAEGSElgEiD %P;é (Ij(]:“?(?]i]d
COMPANY ASSOCIATE
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Share

Demat

Physi
cal

Total

% of
Total
Share

%

Change
during
the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

13522989

13522989

100

54091956

54091956

100

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sum Total A-1

2) Foreign

a) NRI-

Individuals

b) other

Individuals

¢) Body
Corporate

d) Banks/FI

e) Others

Sum Total A-2

Total
shareholding of
Promoter

(A)=A-1+ A-2

13522989

13522989

100

54091956

54091956

100

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
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b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance

Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

1) Others
(specity)

Sub-total
B)(1): -

2. Non-
institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

400

400

00.00

800

800

00.00

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

¢) Others
(specity)

Non-Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members
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Trusts

Foreign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total
(B)(2): - - 400 400 00.00 800 - 800 00.00 -
Total Public
Shareholding
B)=B)1) +
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total 13521389 | 13521389 | 100% | 54092756 - 54092756 100% NA
(A+B+C)

*Pursuant to resolution passed in shareholder meeting held on 26" October 2023 and in Board Meeting dated 09" November 2023 for allotment of Bonus share
of in the ratio of 1:1 at a price of Rs.10 each.

** Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated October 21, 2023 and a resolution of our Shareholders dated October 26, 2023, each equity shares of our
Company bearing face value of I 10 each was sub-divided into 2 equity shares of bearing face value of X 5 each. Accordingly, the then issued, subscribed and
paid-up equity share capital of our Company was sub-divided from 27,046,378 equity shares bearing face value of ¥ 10 each to 54,092,756 equity shares

bearing face value of T 5 each.
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B) Shareholding of Promoter-

SI. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year | % change in
No Name the year shareholding
No. of % of %of Shares No.of | % oftotal | %of Shares during the
Shares total Pledged / Shares* | Shares of | Pledged/ year
Shares | encumbered the encumbered
of the to total company to total
company shares shares
1 Anita Rai 3799954 | 28.10 - 15199816 28.10 - -
2 Kunal Rai 873000 6.46 - 3492000 6.46 - -
3 Sudhir Rai | 7800035 | 57.68 - 31200140 57.68 - -
4 Sumeet Rai 950000 7.02 - 3800000 7.02 - -

*There is no change in the % of shareholding at the end of the year, however there is changes in the no. of shares held during the end due
to sub-division of shares from Rs 10 each to Rs 5 each and Bonus issue.

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) —

SN Shareholding of each Directors and | Shareholding during the Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 Anita Rai
At the beginning of the year 3799954 28.10 3799954 28.10
Date wise Increase / Deerease in - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the 3799954
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment Issue)
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
7599908
(sub-
division)
At the end of the year 15199816 28.10 15199816 28.10
2 Sudhir Rai
At the beginning of the year 7800035 57.68 7800035 57.68
Date wise Increase / Deerease in - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the 7800035
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment Issue)
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
15600070
(sub-
division)
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At the end of the year 31200140 57.68 31200140 57.68

3 Kunal Rai
At the beginning of the year 873000 6.46 873000 6.46
Date wise Increase / Deerease in
Promoters Shareholding during the 873000
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / Issue)

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

1746000
(sub-
division)
At the end of the year 3492000 6.46 3492000 6.46
4 Sumeet Rai
At the beginning of the year 950000 7.02 950000 7.02
Date wise Increase / Deerease in
Promoters Shareholding during the 950000
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / Issue*)
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
1900000
(sub-
division**)
At the end of the year 3800000 7.02 3800000 7.02

*Pursuant to resolution passed in shareholder meeting held on 26" October 2023 and in Board Meeting dated 09" November 2023 for allotment of
Bonus share of in the ratio of 1:1 at a price of Rs.10 each.

** Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated October 21, 2023 and a resolution of our Shareholders dated October 26, 2023, each equity shares of
our Company bearing face value of % 10 each was sub-divided into 2 equity shares of bearing face value of % 5 each.

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Nil

SN For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
shares of the | shares shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year - - - -

At the beginning of the year - - - -
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Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Directors and | Shareholding during the Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 Anita Rai
At the beginning of the year 3799954 28.10 3799954 28.10
Date wise Increase / Deerease in - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the 3799954
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment Issue)
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
7599908
(sub-
division)
At the end of the year 15199816 28.10 15199816 28.10
2 Sudhir Rai
At the beginning of the year 7800035 57.68 7800035 57.68
Date wise Increase / Deerease in - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the 7800035
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment Issue)
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
15600070
(sub-
division)
At the end of the year 31200140 57.68 31200140 57.68
3 Kunal Rai
At the beginning of the year 873000 6.46 873000 6.46
Date wise Increase / Deerease in
Promoters Shareholding during the 873000
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / Issue)
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
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1746000
(sub-
division)
At the end of the year 3492000 6.46 3492000 6.46
4 Sumeet Rai
At the beginning of the year 950000 7.02 950000 7.02
Date wise Increase / Deerease in
Promoters Shareholding during the 950000
year specifying the reasons for (Bonus
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / Issue*)
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
1900000
(sub-
division**)
At the end of the year 3800000 7.02 3800000 7.02

*Pursuant to resolution passed in shareholder meeting held on 26" October 2023 and in Board Meeting dated 09" November 2023 for allotment of
Bonus share of in the ratio of 1:1 at a price of Rs.10 each.

** Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated October 21, 2023 and a resolution of our Shareholders dated October 26, 2023, each equity shares of
our Company bearing face value of T 10 each was sub-divided into 2 equity shares of bearing face value of T 5 each.

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.

(Rs in Millions)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
1) Principal Amount 862.71 17.60 0 880.31
i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1.59 0 0 1.59
Total (i+ii+iii) 864.30 17.60 0 881.90
Change in Indebtedness during the 0 0 0
financial year
* Addition 462.74 0 0 0
* Reduction 176.30 0 0 0
Net Change 8.34 0 0 0
Indebtedness at the end of the 0 0 0 0
financial year
1) Principal Amount 1151.74 17.60 0 1169.34
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
1i1) Interest accrued but not due 1.71 0 0 1.71
Total (i+ii+iii) 1153.44 17.60 0 1171.04
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors:

(Rs in millions)

SL Particulars of Name of MD/WTD
N Remuneration Total Amount
0
Sudhir Rai Anita Rai | Sumeet Rai | Kunal Rai K. Suresh Total
Babu*
1 | Gross salary 3.60 2.40 2.40 2.40 0.85 11.60
(a) Salary as per 0 0 0 0
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of 0 0 0 0 0 0
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu 0 0 0 0 0 0
of salary under
section 17(3)
Income- tax Act,
1961
2 | Stock Option 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 | Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 0 0
4 | Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 | Others, please 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total (A) 3.60 2.40 2.40 2.40 0.85 11.60
Overall Ceiling

* K Suresh Babu ceased from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 215 October 2023.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Rs in millions)

board committee
meetings

SN. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
Remuneration Amount
Sanjiv Paul Gurvinder Deepa Mukesh Kumar
Singh Ahuja | Verma Agarwal
1 | Independent
Directors
Fee for attending 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.21

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (1)
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Other Non- - -
Executive
Directors

Fee for attending - -
board committee
meetings

Commission - -

Others, please - -
specify

Total (2) - -

Total (B)=(1+2) ; }

Total Managerial - -
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as - -
per the Act

C) REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

SN | Particulars of Remuneration CS CFO* Total
Debolina Kunal Rai
Karmakar
1 Gross salary 2,13,453 0 2,13,453
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0 0 0
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 0 0 0
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0 0 0
Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0
- as % of profit 0 0 0
others, specify... 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0 0
Total 2,13,453 0 2,13,453

*Mr Kunal Rai designated as Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO draws salary in the capacity of Director only

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Act | Description Penalty / [RD/ made,
Punishment/ NCLT/ if any (give
Compounding COURT] Details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding
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B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Chairman and Managing Director
Sudhir Rai

DIN: 00512423

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Whole Time Director
Anita Rai

DIN: 00513329

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated: 15/05/2024
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KROSS LIMITED Phone : (0657) - 2203812, 2203813
(Formerly known as Kross Manufactures (1) Put. Ltd.) K E-mail : accounts @krossindia.com
(IATF 16949 Company) KROSS purchase @krossindia.com
M4, VI Phase, Gamharia, Adityapur Industrial Area, ] Website : www.krossindia.com
Jamshedpur - 832 108 (India) s

CIN : U29100JH1991PLC004465

Break-up of Shareholders Position in the Company as on 31/03/2024

SL No Name of the Shareholders Position in the Company

1 Sumit Rai Promoter

2 Anita Rai Promoter

3 Sumeet Rai Promoter

4 Kunal Rai Promoter

5 Dipak Rai HUF (Sudhir Rai Promoter Group

Karta)
6 K. Suresh Banu Public
7 Navin Kumar Kapur Public

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Chairman and Managing Director
Sudhir Rai

DIN: 00512423

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Whole Time Director
Anita Rai

DIN: 00513329

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated: 15/05/2024
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KROSS LIMITED

(Formerly known as Kross Manufactures (1) Pvt. Ltd.)
(IATF 16949 Company)

M4, VI Phase, Gamharia, Adityapur Industrial Area,
Jamshedpur - 832 108 (India)

K
R
ng

57/

Phone : (0657) - 2203812, 2203813
E-mail : accounts @krossindia.com
purchase @krossindia.com

Website : www.krossindia.com

CIN : U29100JH1991PLC004465
FORM NO-AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

KROSS LIMITED

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. NA

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction Nil
including the value, if any
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or Nil
transactions’
Date of approval by the Board Nil
Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General Nil
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. Applicable

Details
Bull Auto Parts /Directors Proprietorship Firm

Particulars

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Sales Transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)
05/05/2022

Nil

Sales Transaction of Rs. 155.98 mm

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Date of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

transaction including the value, if any

Particulars Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Sudhir Rai

(Chairman and Managing Director & KMP)
Director Remuneration

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)
06/06/2022

Nil

Director Remuneration Rs. 3.60 mm

Nature of transaction

Duration of the transaction

Date of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any
Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if

any
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Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mrs. Anita Rai
(Whole Time Director)

Nature of transaction

Director Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Director Remuneration Rs. 2.40 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Sumeet Rai
(Whole Time Director)

Nature of transaction

Director Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Director Remuneration Rs. 2.40 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Kunal Rai
(Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO)

Nature of transaction

Director Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Director Remuneration Rs. 2.40 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. K. Suresh Babu
(Director)

Nature of transaction

Director Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

Seven Months (01/04/2023 to 31/10/2023)

Date of approval by the Board

21/07/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Director Remuneration Rs. 0.85 mm
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Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Sudhir Rai
(KMP)

Nature of transaction

Unsecured Loan

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Unsecured Loan Rs. 12.53 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mrs. Anita Rai
(KMP)

Nature of transaction

Unsecured Loan

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Unsecured Loan Rs. 3.42 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Sumeet Rai
(KMP)

Nature of transaction

Unsecured Loan

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Unsecured Loan Rs. 0.86 mm

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Kunal Rai
(KMP)

Nature of transaction

Unsecured Loan

Duration of the transaction

One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

06/06/2022

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Unsecured Loan Rs. 0.79

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Mr. Rahul Rungta*
(KMP)
Nature of transaction Remuneration
Duration of the transaction One Year (01/04/2023 to 31/05/2023)
Date of approval by the Board 01/10/2018
Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
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Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Remuneration Rs. 0.02 mm

* Rahul Rungta Resigned from the position of Company Secretary w.e.f.

May, 2023

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Ms Sangita Kumar Agarwal**
(KMP)
Nature of transaction Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

Five Months (01/06/2023 to 31/10/2023)

Date of approval by the Board

01/06/2023

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if

Remuneration Rs. 0.07

an
** Sa};gita Kumari Agarwal has served in the position of Company secretary from 01st June 2023 to 16th November 2023
Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Ms Debolina Karmakar***
(KMP)
Nature of transaction Remuneration

Duration of the transaction

Five Months (01/11/2023 to 31/03/2024)

Date of approval by the Board

16/11/2023

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Remuneration Rs 0.21

*** Debolina Karmakar was appointed in the position of Company Secret

ary w.e.f. 16th November 2023

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Mr Sanjiv Paul*
(Independent Director)
Nature of transaction Sitting Fees
Duration of the transaction (21/10/2023 to 31/03/2024)
Date of approval by the Board 21/10/2023
Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Sitting Fees of Rs 0.06 mm

* Sanjiv Paul was appointed in the board of the Company w.e.f. 215t October 2023

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr Gurvinder Singh Ahuja*
(Independent Director)

Nature of transaction Sitting Fees

Duration of the transaction (21/10/2023 to 31/03/2024)
Date of approval by the Board 21/10/2023

Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if
any

Sitting Fees of Rs 0.06 mm

* Gurvinder Singh Ahuja was appointed in the board of the Company w.e

.f. 21t October 2023
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Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Mr Deepa Verma*
(Independent Director)

Nature of transaction Sitting Fees

Duration of the transaction (21/10/2023 to 31/03/2024)
Date of approval by the Board 21/10/2023

Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if | Sitting Fees of Rs 0.06 mm
any

* Deepa Verma was appointed in the board of the Company w.e.f. 21t October 2023

Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Mr Mukesh Kumar Agarwal*
(Independent Director)

Nature of transaction Sitting Fees

Duration of the transaction (21/10/2023 to 31/03/2024)
Date of approval by the Board 21/10/2023

Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if | Sitting Fees of Rs 0.03 mm
any

* Mukesh Kumar Agarwal was appointed in the board of the Company w.e.f. 215t October 2023

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Chairman and Managing Director
Sudhir Rai

DIN: 00512423

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Whole Time Director
Anita Rai

DIN: 00513329

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated: 15/05/2024
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(Formerly known as Kross Manufactures (1) Pvt. Ltd.) E-mail : accounts @krossindia.com
(IATF 16949 Company) purchase @krossindia.com

KROS S LIMITED % Phone : (0657) - 2203812, 2203813

M4, VI Phase, Gamharia, Adityapur industrial Area,
Jamshedpur - 832 108 (India) S
CIN : U29100JH1991PLC004465

Website : www.krossindia.com

[Annexure -1]

Annual Report on CSR Activities
(Pursuant to Rule-9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. — Kross Understands its responsibility towards the society and
the same is reflected by activities initiated and undertaken by it. The CSR programme of Kross will cover not
only the person associated with it but it also extends to society at large and more particularly to the person
residing in local areas. The business vision and mission of Kross well reflects its belief for betterment of society
through empowerment, creating value and welfare activities. Also, Kross will come forward with best of its
efforts to help the society in the time of natural calamities like earthquake, tsunami and etc.

2. Composition of CSR Commiittee:

SI. No. Name of Designation / Nature of Number of Number of meetings of
Director Directorship meetings of CSR | CSR Committee attended

Committee held during the year
during the year

1 Sudhir Rai Executive Director 1 1

2. Anita Rai Executive Director 1 1

3 Sumeet Rai Executive Director 1 1

4, Deepa Verma* | Independent Director 1 0

*Ms. Deepa Verma was appointed in the Board and committee of the Company w.e.f 21*" October 2023

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company. - https://www.krosslimited.com/copy-of-financial-reports

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). - Not
Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any - Not
Applicable

SI. No. Financial Year| Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-off
from preceding financial years | for the financial year, if any (in

(in Rs) Rs)

1 - - -

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). - Rs. 220.294 mm

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 4.41 mm

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. NA
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢). - Rs. 4.41 mm
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7. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year. (Rs. In

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to

Lakh
akhs) section 135 (6) section 135 (5)
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
44.06 - - *PMNRF 7,06,000 11.05.2024

*The company has spent Rs 3.7 mm during the financial year 2023 - 24 and the remaining amount of Rs 0.706 mm
was transferred to PMNRF as on 11" May 2024, a fund specified under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
section 135(5) and CSR spending for the FY 2023 — 24 was complied.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: As per section 135(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Inter alia, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the
Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy.
The Company has computed the CSR amount required to spend for the financial years 2023 to 2024 and is in the
process of identifying the necessary projects and approval.

(&) 2) (&) “ &) (6 Q) ® (&) a0 an
SI. No.[ Name of the |Item from the list| Local area | Location of the| Project | Amount [Amount| Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -|
Project of activities in (Yes/No) project duration | allocated | spent in |transferred |Implementation -| Through Implementing
Schedule VII to for the the to Unspent | Direct (Yes/No). Agency
the Act L. project (in | current CSR
State |District Rs.) financial | Account for Name 'CSR .
Year (in | the project Registration
Rs.) as per number
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.)
1. - - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - -
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
@ (0] (€)) “ &) © Q) ®
SI. No. Name of the |Item from the list| Local area| Location of the | Amount |Mode of | Mode of implementation -
Project of activities in | (Yes/ No). project. spent for the|impleme | Through implementing
schedule VII to project (in | ntation - agency.
the Act State | District Rs.inmm) | Direct Name. CSR
(Yes/No) . .
registration
number
1. Laghu Udyog |Skill Development No Mabharashtra 1.5 No Laghu CSR00008488
Udyog
2. Seva Bharati Women No Manipur 1 Yes - -
empowerment
3. The Stray Army | Animal Welfare Yes Jamshedpur 0.2 No The Stray | CSR00063455
Army
4. Loyla School Education Yes Jamshedpur 1 No Loyla CSR00067066
School
5. PMNRF FUND No NA 2.2 Yes PMNRF -
Total - - - 5.9 - -
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs 44.06 Lacs.
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

SI. No. Particular Amount (Rs. In
lakhs)

(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 44.06
section 135(5)

(i1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 59.00

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] 14.94

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any

W) IAmount available for set off in succeeding financial years 14.94
[(iii)-(iv)]

8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SI. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount |Remarks
No. | Financial | transferred | spentin the | specified under Schedule VII as | remaining to
Year. to Unspent | reporting per section 135(6), if any. be spent in
CSR Financial succeeding
Account |Year (in Rs.) financial
under section| years. (In Rs.)
135R(g)) (in Name of | Amount (Rs| Date of
) the Fund | in mm) transfer
1 2020-21 - - PMNRF 1.42 11.05.2024 - -

*The accumulated unspent CSR amount of the company for all preceding financial years stood at Rs. 5.10 mm however the company had
transferred an amount of Rs 1.42 (CSR liability for FY 2020 -21) and Rs 0.073 (for CSR liability in FY 2019 — 20) towards PMNRF and
thus the unspent CSR liability of the Company as on the date of the report stands at Rs. 3.606 mm

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
NIL

0] (2 3 “ ) (6) (7 ) 9
SI. No.| Project ID. |Name of the |[Financial Year| Project Total | Amount Cumulative Status of the
Project in which the | duration | amount | spent on | amount spent at project -
project was allocated [the project, the end of Completed
commenced. for the in the reporting /Ongoing.
project (in| reporting [ Financial Year.

Rs.) Financial (In Rs.)

Year (in

Rs)

1 - - - - - - - -

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil

(asset-wise details).
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(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset).

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5). NA

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Chairman and Managing Director
Sudhir Rai

DIN: 00512423

On behalf of the Board of Directors
KROSS LTD

Sd/-

Whole Time Director
Anita Rai

DIN: 00513329

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated: 15/05/2024
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: 58-B, Suraj Tower, 1st Floor,
ﬂ A“A“SH AGAHWA[ & Assuc'nTEs Q Pennar Road‘ Sakchi‘ ]amshedpur
(PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY) Pin -831001, Jharkhand
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended 31* March, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

KROSS LIMITED

Regd office: M-4, Phase VI,
Gambharia, Adityapur Industrial Area,
Jamshedpur, Jharkhand-832108

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by KROSS LIMITED (hereinafter called the
"Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the KROSS LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31* March, 2024, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March 2024, according to the
provisions of the various acts, rules and guidelines applicable to it which are as follows:

» The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

» The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

» Other laws as applicable to the Company;

» Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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I further report that,

1. During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the
Management and subject to clarification given to me, the Company has generally complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

2. Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

4. As represented by the Company and relied upon by us there are adequate systems and processes in
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

5. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

6. During the audit period there were certain important events/action occurred which are mentioned
below:

» Increase in Authorized share capital

Issue & Allotment of Bonus Shares

Sub-Division/Split of Shares

Appointment of Whole-Time & Independent Directors of the Company
Constitution of various Committees

Alteration in Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company
Borrowing Money for the purpose of business of the company

Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Adoption of various policies

VVVVVVY

‘1

Adarsh Agarwal & Associates

(Practicing Company Secrejry)
;\_ w-:@ui ..

FCS No: 13006
CP No: 13658
Adarsh Agarwal
Proprietor

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 15/05/2024

UDIN: FO13006F000373443
Peer Review No: 4267

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-I and forms as
integral part of this report. ”
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Annexure-1
To
The Members
KROSS LIMITED
Regd office: M-4, Phase VI,
Gamharia, Adityapur Industrial Area,
Jamshedpur, Jharkhand-832108

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I
believe that the processes and practices, followed, provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards are the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Adarsh Agarwal & Associates

(Practicing Compan Se? G')J\ .
Ol
N\ FCS No: 1
CP No: 13658
Adarsh Agarwal
Proprietor

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 15/05/2024

UDIN: FO13006F000373443 .
Peer Review No: 4267
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KROSS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KROSS LIMITED (the “Company™), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act. (*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit. total comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA™s)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial
Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report. Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. '

Head Office : 5, Park Mansions, 3rd Floor, 57A, Park Street, Kolkata - 700016 (West Bengal)
Branches: ® Bhubaneswar ® Pune ® Ranchi @ Jaipur



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance. including other comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in aggregate. they could reasonablybe expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that af/
material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Financial Statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions




are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Equity and the Statements of Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March. 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
- A™. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197(16) of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 as amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
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i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial
Statements — Refer Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
fund as such the question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity. including foreign entity (“Intermediaries’™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented. that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e). as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v) The company had not declared or paid any dividend during the year. therefore compliance with section
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks. the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording audit, trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transaction in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trial feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023 reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trial as per the
Statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for financial year ended March 31, 2024.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure “B”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

For S.K. Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Regn No. 003333C

(Ram}

Partner
M. No. 302632
UDIN: 24302632BKBXSK9441

Place: Jamshedpur. India
Date: May 15, 2024



ANNEXURE - “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Kross Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of KROSS LIMITED
(the “Company™) as at March 31. 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of




unauthorized acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.K. Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn No. 003333C

los

(Rahul Naredi)
Partner
M. No. 302632

UDIN: 24302632BKBXSK9441

Place: Jamshedpur, India
Date: May 15, 2024



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Kross Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

I In respect of the Company’s Property. Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-
of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) As explained to us all the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. As informed to
us no materials discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which
building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us,
we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). disclosed in the financial statements
included under Property. Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property. Plant and Equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the vear.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31. 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) As explained to us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion. the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crore, in aggregate.
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets of the company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with
such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company and the same has
been disclosed in Note-48 of the Financial Statement.

iii. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security. and granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured. to companies. firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is
not applicable.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans. made investments or provided guarantees or securities and
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Vi. The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance




of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie. the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:
(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax. duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax. Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax. Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance. Income Tax. Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax. Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax. income tax. duty of excise that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute. are as follows

Name of the Statue Nature of dues Amount in | Period to which | Forum where
Millions the amount | dispute is pending
o - relates
Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 16.99 FY 2012-13 | Commissioner of
Income Tax
(Appeals)
Central Goods and | Cenvat Tran-1 3.47 FY 2017-18 | Assistant
Services Tax Act, Commissioner of
2017 Goods & Service
I Tax
Central Goods and | Excise Duty 0.65 | Apr-07-June-17 | CGST & Central
Services Tax Act, Excise, Adityapur-
2017 \'
Central Goods and | Excise Duty 6.94 | Apr-07-June-17 | CGST & Central
Services Tax Act, Excise, Adityapu,
2017 Division-III
Central Goods and | Excise Duty 20.07 | Apr-07-June-17 | CGST & Central
| Services Tax Act, | Excise. Adityapur,
| 2017 _ | - 7 | Division-11I

Other than above, there are no dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, service
tax. custom duty. value added tax, cess. and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us. there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961).

iX. (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowing or
in the payment of interest thereon from any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overg
examination of the financial statements of the Company. funds raised by the Company on sl
term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes.
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(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary or joint ventures and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the vear, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT - 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company. there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit. issued to the Company during
the year and till date. in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45- [A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during the year.
On the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our -
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of thg’y




of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however. state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

a) The company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other than ongoing
projects, to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. with respect to previous financial years (i.e.
before FY - 2022-23) to the extent of Rs.5.11 million.

However. in respect of the current financial year, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII to companies Act, 2013.

b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the current
financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For S.K. Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn No. 003333C

s

(Rahul Naredi)
Partner
M. No. 302632

UDIN: 24302632BKBXSKY9441

Place: Jamshedpur. India
Date: May 15, 2024



KROSS Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

£ " As at As at
Faricalane NOUS | Narch 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
(I) Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property. plant and equipment 4 1.051 41 890.76
(b) Capital work in progress 4 5430 -
(c) Right of use assets 5 1.7 0.68
(d) Other intangible assets 6 090 0.16
(e) Financial assets
(1) Investments 7 030 030
(1) Other financial assets 8 31.25 6592
(f) Other non-current assets 9 32.53 33.03
Total Non-current assets (1) 1,178.46 990.85
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 835.18 621.96
(b) Financial assets
(1) Investments 1 5.31 1.05
(11) Trade receivables 12 1.098 38 518.07
(111) Cash and cash equivalents 13 56.55 12998
(1v) Other bank balance (Other than (iii) above) 14 48 57 12.48
(v) Other financial assets 8 1.75 1.81
(c) Other current assets 9 295 86 22952
Total current assets (2) 2,.341.59 1,514.87
Total Assets |1+2] 3,520.04 2,505.72
(IT) Equity and Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 270 46 13523
(b) Other equity 16 1.197 59 885.83
Total equity (1) 1,468.05 1,021.06
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial habihties
(1) Borrowings 17 225.26 270.70
(1) Lease habihties 5 5.20 043
(b) Long-term provisions 18 48 96 45.56
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 59.36 56.37
Total Non-current liabilities (2) 338.78 373.06
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 17 945 79 611.20
(1) Lease labilities 5 275 0.25
(111) Trade payables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 89 91 52.76
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 397 60 287.67
(1v) Other financial habilities 21 79.24 28.51
(b) Short-term provisions 18 644 483
(¢) Current tax habilities (Net) 22 86 77 48.14
(d) Other current habilities 23 104.71 78.23
Total current liabilities (3) 1,713.22 1.111.59
Total Equity and Liabilities [1+2+3] 3.520.04 2,505.72

The notes from 1 - 63 form an integral part of the financial statements
For S.K.Naredi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn Number (003333C

Rahul Naredi

Partner
M No 302632

Jamshedpur, India
May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ROSS Limited
100JH1921PLC004465

Anita Rai
Whole time director
DIN 003513329

é_n)n o (o
bolina Karmakar

Company Secretary
M No: ACS62738

Sudhir Rai
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 003512423

Kunal Rai
Whole time Director & CFO
DIN 06863333



KROSS Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particalars Nites For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(1) Revenue from operations 24 6.202 50 4 88628
(2) Other income 25 12.14 7.29
(3) Total Income (1) +(2) 6.214.64 4,893.57
(4) Expenses
(a) Cost of raw materials consumed 26 3,786 81 2.941.66
(b) Changes in inventories of fimished products and work in progress 27 (227.78) (44 57)
(c) Emplovee benefits expense 28 304 23 265.09
(d) Finance costs 29 148 96 122.19
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 57 86 43 22
() Other expense 31 1.531.66 1.148 88
Total Expenses (4) 5,601.74 4,476.47
(5) Profit before tax (3) - (4) 612.90 417.10
(6) Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 19
(1) Current tax 154 89 100 80
(1) Current tax for the earhier years 560 098
(b) Deferred tax 19
(1) Deferred tax 3.60 601
Total tax expense (6) 164.09 107.79
(7) Profit for the period/ vear (5) - (6) 448.81 309.31
(8) Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans (2.45) 1.64
(b) Income tax relating to above items 062 (0.41
Total other comprehensive income (8) (1.83) 1.23
(9) Total comprehensive income for the period/ vear (7 + 8) 446.98 310.54
(10) Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 5 each) 32
Basic 830 572
Diluted 8 30 572

The notes from 1 - 63 form an integral part of the financial statements
For S.K.Naredi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Regn Number :003333C

s

Rahul Naredi
Partner
M No: 302632

Jamshedpur, India- -
May 15, 2024

Kunal Rai
Whole ume Director & CFO
DIN: 06863533

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

KROSS Limited

CIN : U29100JH1991PLC004465

irman & Managing Director
DIN: 00512423

Y

Anita Rai
Whole time director
DIN: 00513329

Q
oebolSn o
Debolina Karmakar
Company Secretary

M No: ACS62738



KROSS Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the vear ended 31 March, 2024

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

I — For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(A) Cash flows from operating activities :
Profit before tax 612,90 417.10
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 57 86 43.23
Finance costs 148 96 122.19
Allowances for expected credit loss 371 3
Unwinding of interest on long term security deposit (0.03) (0.01),
Net fair value gans on financial assets mandatonly measured at fair value through profit or loss (0.64) (0.19),
Profit on sale of property. plant and equipments (002) (0.07),
Interest Income (6.93) (3.91)
Operanng profit before changes in non current/ current assets and liabilities 815.79 582.05
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase ) Decrease i Inventones i213.22) (208.24)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current financial assets 34.67 (10.06),
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets 050 -
(Increase)/Decrease in trade recervables (58031) (18.27)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets 0.06 0.26
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (89.94) (16.45)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 257 2.70
Increase/( Decrease) in Trade pavables 147.08 148.78
Increase/{ Decrease) in Other current financial habilities 50.73 16.84
Increase/( Decrease) in other current liabilities 2647 12.58
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 194.40 510.19
Direct Taxes Paid (10942) (92.73)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities 84.98 417.46
(B) Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (216.73) (185.85)
Purchase of Intangible assets (0.77) (0.10)
Proceeds from sale of Property. plant and equipment 0.04 0.38
Purchase of Capital work in progress (54 30)
Interest Received 693 91
Term deposits (placed) ' matured (net) (36 09) (6.32)
Investment in Mutual Funds 4.26 -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (296.65) (187.98)|
(C) Cash flows from financing activities :
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings (Net) (4544 2447
Proceeds from / (repayment) of shorn-term borrowings (net) 33459 (3.46)
Principal lease payments (1.95) (0.18)
Dividend paid - (13.52)
Other interest payments (148.96) (113.04)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities 138.23 (105.73)|
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (73.43) 123.75
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/ year 129.98 6.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 56.55 129.98
Components of Cash and Cash equivalents
Particulars Asat e
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cash m hand 1.90 0.03
Balances with bank in current accounts 51.19 86.71
Balances with bank in deposit accounts 346 4324
Total 56.55 129.98

Notes:

I. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method which prescnbed under Ind AS 7. Statement of Cash Flows

The notes from | - 63 form an integral part of the financial statements

For S.K.Naredi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Regn Number :003333C

Rahul Naredi
Partner
M No: 302632

Jamshedpur, India
May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

KROSS Limited

)

{{,‘( RN Rai
’ ‘Kﬂ \“j S. S * Chairman & Managing Director
| Rl L Ll DIN 00512423 \ ;
] \ ~ -] 2
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Kunal Rai
Whole ume Director & CFO
DIN- 06863533

29100JH1991 PLC0O04465

R

Anita Rai
Whole time director
DIN 00513329

wlﬂw
ebolina Karmakar

Company Secretary
M No ACS62738




KROSS Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the yvear ended March 31st, 2024

a. Equity Share Capital

{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes Na. of shares Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 15 1,35,23,189 135.23
Changes n equity share capital dunng the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 15 1,35,23,189 135.23
Changes n equity share capital dunng the peniod 4.05,69,567 135.23
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15 5,40,92,756 270.46
b. Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
idance fhiies er!“m General Reserve | Security Premium fol
Earnings =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 510.72 70.21 7.88 588.81
Profit for the vear 16 30931 g = 309.31
Other Comprehensive Income’ (loss) for the vear 16 1.23 - = 1.23
Dividends lncludlng taxes 16 (13.52)) (13.52)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 807.74 70.21 7.88 885.83
Profit for the period 16 448 81 - - 448.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the period 16 (1.83) - - (1.83)
Bonus share issued 16 (135.23) - - (135.23)]
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,119.50 70.21 7.88 1,197.59

The notes from | - 63 form an mtegral part of the financial statements

For S.K.Naredi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
IC A1 Furm Reen Number -003333(

G

Rahul Naredi
Partner
M No: 302632

Jamshedpur, India
May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CIN:

DIN 00512425

Kunal Rai

KROSS Limited
00JH1991PLCO04465

Chairman & Managing Director

Whele time Director & CFO

DIN: 06863533

s

Anita Rai

Whole time director
DIN: 00513329

o@-ﬂ_bﬁff n oS

Debolina Karmakar
Company Secretary
M No: ACS62738



KROSS Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March. 2024

2

23

24

2.5

General Information

Kross Linited 15 a public imited company rewstered in Jharkhand. India under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act. 1956 The C 12

critical comp. for cor | vehicles and Tractors The Company sepciahises in manufacturing of trarler axles and other components for automouve industry

(CIN - U29100JH1991PLC004465 & ISIN INE006601022 )

Registered Office  M-4, Phase-VI, Gamhana, Adityapur Industrial Area, Jamshepdur, Gamharia, Seraikela-kharsawan, Seraikella Kharsawan, Jharkhand, India, 832108

Tn the EGM held on October 26. 2023 the members approved by passing the special resolution for proposal to raise an amount upto INR 250 Crores by way of fresh issue in an inital
public offering (the “IPO”) of nts equuty share and consequently histing the Equity Shares on certamn stock exchanges i India The IPO may comprise a fresh issuance of Equity
Shares by the Company and an offer for sale of Equity Shares by certain promoters of the Company The Company had filed DRHP wath the SEBI dated November 30, 2023 and
SEBI had 1ssued final observatons on March 22 2024

Basis of Preparation

"
pany 1s n manuf: g of

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements comply with all matenal aspect of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nontified under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting standards) Rule, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs ). which 1s also the Company’s functional currency All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Millions upto
two decimal, unless otherwise stated

Basis of measurement
These Histoncal Audited Financial Statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis excepl certain financial assets and habihiies which are measured at fair values

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, esumates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and habilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may
differ from these esumates Estimates and underlying assumpuions are reviewed on an ongomg basis. Revisions to accounting estimales are recogmised i the penod in which the
estimate 1s revised and future periods affected

Key source of esumation of uncertamty at the date of the financial statements. which may cause matenal adjustment to the carnying amounts of assets and habilites wathin the next
financial vear are provided below
(a) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property, plant and equipment represents a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company The charge m respect of periodic depreciation 1s derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Company’s assets are deternuned by
the Management at the tme the asset 1s acquired and reviewed periodically, including at the end of each reporung period The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets
(b) Assets and obligati relating to emplovee benefi
The cost of the defined benefit gratnty plan and the present value of the gratwity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuanal valuation involves making
various assumplions that may differ from actual developments in the future These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
10 the complexities mvolved in the valuaton and us long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s highly sensitive to changes i these assumptions All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date
Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases
Ind AS 116, Leases requires lessees 1o determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted wath any option (o extend or terminate the lease. if the use of
such option 1s reasonably certan The Company makes an on the expected lease term on a lease-bv-lease basis and thereby assesses whether 1t 1s reasonably certain
that the Company will continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and whether any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised In evaluating the lease
term. the Company considers factors such as any sigmficant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term. costs relating to the terminating the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations 1aking m to account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suntable alternatives The lease term in
future periods 1s reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future econonmc conditions. the Company
has concluded that no matenal changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

(c

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and habilities

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values The Company regularly reviews sigmificant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. [t third party information 15 used to measure fair values. then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS. including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classitied

Fair values are categonised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used i the valuation techmiques as follows

- Level | guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habiliies

- Level 2 mputs other than quoted prices mcluded in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (1 e.. as prices) or indirectly (1.¢ , derived from prices)
- Level 3 nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a hability. the Company uses observable market data as far as possible If the mputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a
hability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 1s categonised m its entirety m the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level mput that 1s sigmficant to the entire measurement. The Company recogmises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period duning which
the change has occurred.

Material accounting policies:

Pursuant to the Compamies (Indian Accounung Standards) Amendment Rules. 2023 effective 01-04-2023 the company 1s required 1o disclose ‘'matenal accounting policy
Information” n lieu of the earlier requirement of disclosing “sigmificant accounting policies” All accounting pohicies followed by the company are in accordance with the Indian
Accounung Standards (Ind AS) nouified u/s 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.

20135 and contorm to Schedule [ 10 the Co Act, 2013 as applicable Specific disclosure of matenal accounting policy information where Ind AS permits options 1s made
v der The p has ssed the htv of the ac ting policy infi . which mvolves exercising judgement and considening both quantnative and gualitauve
factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item or condition but also the charactenistics of the tr ns, events or cond: that could make the

information maore likelv to imnact the decisions of the users of the financial statements




KROSS Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2024

3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and habilines in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification
An asset 1s classified current when 1t 1s

(a) Expected 10 be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

{¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afiter the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

3.2

A liability is classified current when

{a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cvele.

(b) Tt 1s held primanly for the purpose of trading,

(c) It 1s due to be settled wathin twelve months afier the reporting period. or

(d) There 1s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other habihnes as non-current

Deferred tax assets and habiliies are always classified as non-current assets and habiliues

Financial instruments

(a)

(b

fch

Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt secunities 1ssued are imnally recogmsed when they are ongmated All other financial assets and financial habilities are inally recogmsed when the
Company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the mstrument

A financial asset or financial hability 1s imuially measured at fawr value plus. for an item not at fawr value through profit and loss (FVTPL). transaction costs that are directly
attributable 1o 1ts acquisiion or 1ssue

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On ininial recognition. a financial asset is classified as measured a

- amorused cost,

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT')

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thewr imuial recogmtion. except if and n the peniod the Company ch its b maodel for aging financial assets

A financial assel 1s measured at amortised cost 1f 1t meets both of the followang conditions and s not designated as at FVTPL

— the asset 1s held wathin a business model whose objective 1s 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows. and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

A financial asset is measured al fair value through other comprehensive mcome ("'FVOCT) 1f it meets both of the following conditions and 15 not designated as at FVTPL

— the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and cash flows from sales. and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL This includes all dervative financial assets. On imual recogmtion,
the Company mayv urevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the req| to be d at amorused cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
sigmificantly reduces an accounting musmatch that would otherwise arise

Equity instruments are always classified fair value through profit and loss. except in cases where the Company has elected an irrevocable option of designating the same as fair
value through other comprehensive mcome (FVOCI)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :

These assets are subsequently measured at far value Net gans and losses. mcluding any interest or dividend income. are recogmsed n profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method The amortised cost 1s reduced by impairment losses Interest mcome. foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss Any gan or loss on derecognition 15 recognised in profit or loss

Financial assets at FVOCI :

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 1 ¢ subseguent changes in fair value of the instrument 1s recogmsed in other
comprehensive mcome Any dividend received on such mstruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial lial es: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilines are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A fi al hability 1s classified as at FVTPL 1f 1t 1s classified as held-for-trading, or it is a
denvative or it is designated as such on imtial recogmuion Financial habilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gans and losses, including any interest exp . are
recognised in profit or loss Other fi | habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss Any gain or loss on di i is also r d in profit or loss

Derecoenition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the financial asset expwre. or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substanually all of the nisks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 1n which the Company neither transfers nor retans
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset

If the Company enters into transactions whereby 1t transfers assets recogmsed on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substanuially all of the nisks and rewards of the
ransferved assets. the transferred assets are not derecognised

Financial liabilities

The Company d g afi | Liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire

The Company also derecognises a financial hability when s terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substanually different In this case. a new
financial habihity based on the modified terms 1s recogmsed at fair value The difference between the carrymng of the fi | habihity gwished and the new financial

hability with modified terms 1s recogmsed n profit or loss




KROSS Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2024
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(d) Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowance for expected credit losses 1s recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income
The Company recogmises hife time expected credn losses for all trade recervables that do not constitute a financing transaction

For financial assets iapart from trade receivables that do not consutute of financing transacuon) whose crednt nisk has not sigmficantly increased since imitial recogmition, loss
allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recogmised Loss allowance equal to the lifeume expected credit losses is recogmised if the credit nsk of the financial
asset has sigmificantly increased since imitial recognition

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial habilinies are offser and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when. the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and n intends esther to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

(el

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods/services are transferred to the at an that refl the deration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods/services Such revenue is recognised upon the Company s performance of its contractual obligations and on satsfving all
the following conditions

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective abligations.

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties i connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services (heremnafter the “Transfer™).
(3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature. namely, it wall change the risk, ume distribution or amount of the Company s future cash flow,

(5) The Company 1s likely to recover the consideration it 1s entitled to for the Transfer to customers

Revenue 1s recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration The amount recogiised as revenue 1s exclusive of all indirect taxes and net
of returns and discounts

(a) Sale of goods
For contracts with customers for sale of goods. revenue 1s recogmsed net of discount and rebates. at a point in ume when control of the asset 1s transferred to the customer,
which 15 when the goods are delivered to the customers as per the terms of the contracts Delivery happens when the goods have been shipped or delivered to the specific
location, as the case may be. the risk of loss has been transferred. and either the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with the contracts or the Company has objective
evidence that all critena related for acceptance has been sausfied

No element of sigmificant financing 1s deemed present as the sales are generallv made with a credit term which 1s consistent wath the market pracuce A receivable is recognised
when the goods are delivered and this 1s the point in ime that the consideration 1s unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the pavment is due

(b) Sale of Services
Revenue from service contracts are recogmsed n the accounting penod in which the services are rendered Where the contracts include muluple perfc obliga the
transaction price 1s allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone selling price and revenue 1s recognised over ume as and when the customer receives the
beneiit of the Company’s performance based on the actual service provided to as proportion of the total services to be provided In case. the service contracts include one
performance obligation revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as proportion of the total services to be provided This 1s
determuned based on the actual expenditure incurred to the total estimated cost

(¢) Dividend and interest income
Dividend income is recogmsed when the company’s right 10 receive payment has been established and that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and amount of
income can be measured reliably

Interest income from a financial asset i1s recogmised when 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits wall flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably
Interest income 1s accrued on a ume basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount on imtial recogmtion

Government granis

Government grants are recogmsed where there 15 reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached condions will be complied with When the grant relates to an
expense item, it i1s recogmsed as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs. for which 1t 1s intended to compensate, are expensed When the grant relates to
an asset, 1t 1s recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expecied to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities The tax rates and tax laws used lo compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substanuvelv enacted at the reporting date

Current tax relaung to items recogmsed directly i equity 1s recogmsed m equity and not m the statement of profit or loss Management peniodically evaluates positions taken i the
tax returns with respect 10 situations m which apphicable 1ax regulanions are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Deferred rax
Deferred tax 1s provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date Deferred tax habihiies are recogmised for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to
the extent that it 1s probable that 1axable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be uulised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset to be utiised Unrecogmised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogmised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 1s realised or the hability 1s settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantivelv enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recogmsed outside profit or loss 1s recogmsed outside profit or loss. Deferred tax 1lems are recogmsed m correlation 1o the underlying transaction either
n OCI or durectly in equity

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 1if and only 1f it has a legallv enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax habilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax habihiues relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authornity
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Foreign currencies
Items included in the fi I st are r d using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the enuity operates (‘the functional currency’) The
Company's financial statements are presented n Indian Rupees. which 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are imtially recorded by the Company n its functional currency spot rates at the date the tr. first qualifies for r

Monetary assets and habiliies denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the funcuional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences ansing on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss unless they relates to the qualifying cash flow hedges

Non-monetary stems that are measured m terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on mihal recogmuion of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecogmition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
labihity relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction 1s the date on which the Company minally recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary hability arising
from the advance consideration If there are multiple pavments or receipts n advance, the Company deternunes the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. it any  Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of
accumulated impawrment losses. if any

Cast of Property. plant and equipment includes the costs directly attributable to the acquisition or constructions of assets, or replacing parts of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for quahifying assets. if the recognition critenia are met. When sigmificant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals. the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate. only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with
them wall flow to the Company and the cost of the 1tem can measured reliably All other repair and mamtenance costs are recogmsed i profit or loss as incurred

Advance grven for acquisiion / construction of Property. Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are presented as "Capital Advance™ under Other Non Current Assets
The assets n the process of construction or acquisiion but not ready for management's intended use are included under Capital Work in progress

Depreciation 1s provided on Straight line method m the manner and on the basis of useful lives prescribed i Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act. 2013 Depreciation on additon /
deduction 1s calculated pro-rata from/to the month of addition / deduction

An item of property, plant and equipment and any sigmficant part imtially recogmised 1s derecognised upon disposal (1.e.. at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gam or loss ansing on derecogmuion of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) 1s included n the statement of profit or loss when the asset 1s derecogmsed

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropnate

The d useful lives of the assets dered by the Com is stated hereunder:
Assets Description Useful Life in Years
Office Building 60
Heavy Equipments 15
Heavy Vehicles 6
Office Apphances 5
Computer 3
Other Machmery 15
Motor Cycle. Scooter 10
Motor Vehicles 8
Furmture 10
Electrical Equipments 10
Leases
The Comp. at contract incep vhether a contract 1s. or contains, a lease. That is. 1 the contract conveys the night to control the use of an identfied asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration

The Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets The Company recogmises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and nght-of-use assets representng the night to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises rnight-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.¢ . the date the underlying asset 1s available for use) Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any 1 ement of lease habil The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
habiliues recogmised. imual direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assels are
depreciated on a strmght-hine basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful hives of the assets

1f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, deprecianon s calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease payments
nclude fixed payments (including in-substance fixed pavments) less any lease incentives receivable. vanable lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected
1o be pard under residual value guarantces The lease payments also include payments of penalties for termmating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate

Vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recogmsed as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the peniod in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease pavments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease 1s
not readily determinable Afier the commencement date. the amount of lease habilities 1s increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made In
addinon. the carrying amount of lease habilines is remeasured if there 1s a modificanon, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease pavments

The Companv’s lease oblizauons are presented on the face of the Balance Sheet

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (1 e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date)
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recogmition exemption to leases of assets that are considered 10 be low value Lease payments on short-lerm leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantally all the nisks and rewards mcidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases Rental income anising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and 1s included in revenue i the statement of profit or loss due to 11s operating nature Imual direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period m which they are earned

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly atnbutable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that r ily takes a sut 1al period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are caputalised as part of the cost of the asset All other b £ COsis are exp d in the period in which they occur Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that

an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separatelv are measured on mtial recogmition at cost. Subsequemt to imnal recogmtion, intanwble assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure 1s reflected
n profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure i1s incurred

Intangible assets are amorused over the useful economic Iife (5 years for P 1t ) and d for imp whenever there 1s an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an mtangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

An wible asset 1s d used upon d

1 posal (1.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain

or loss ansing upon derecogmition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s included in the Statement of
Profit or Loss
Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At each balance sheet date. the Company reviews the carrying value of 1ts property, plant and equipment and miangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that the
carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use I anv such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset 1s reviewed in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss. if any Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets. the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit 10 which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use [n assessing value m use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money and the nsks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted An impairment loss 15 recogmsed in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrving value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

‘Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) 1s increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount so that the
increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating umt) in prior
vears A reversal of an impas loss 15 rec d in the st. of profit and loss immediately

Pr and conti ies
Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present obligaton (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 1t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits wall be required 1o seitle the oblization and a relable estimate can be made of the amount of the obhiganon

If the effect of the ume value of money 1s matenal, provistons are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate. the risks specific to the hability When
discounting 15 used. the increasc in the provision due to the passage of time 1s recogmised as a finance cost

Disclosure for conungent habihties 1s made when there 1s a possible obligation ansing from past events. the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly wathin the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where 1t 1s either not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliabl of the cannot be made

Inventories

Raw matenials, work-in-progress and fimished products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value afier providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary Cost includes purchase price. non-refundable taxes and duties and other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the goods to the point of sale Work-m-progress and
fimshed goods include appropniate proportion of overheads

Stores and spares and consumables are valued at cost comprising of purchase price. non refundable taxes and duties and other directly aunibutable costs after providing for
obsolescence and other losses. where considered necessary

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits wath a maturity of three months or less.
thal are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject 1o an insigmificant nisk of changes n value

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term: deposits. as defined above

Employee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits

Liabihuies for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be seitled wholly within 12 months aiter the end of the penod in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees” services up 1o the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be pard when the habilhites are settled The habilines
are presented as current employee related liabilities under other financial habilities in balance sheet

Post - employment benefits

The habilny or asset recogzmsed in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans 1s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets The defined benefit obhigation 1s calculated annually at vear end by actuanies using the projected umit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determimed by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximanng to the terms of the related obliganon

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obliganion and the fair value of plan assets This cost 1s included in “Employee
Benefits Expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurement gams and losses ansing from expenience adjustments and changes m actuanal assumptions are recogmised n the period in which they occur. directly m other
comprehensive income These are ncluded in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognmised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost
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Defined contribution plan
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly admmistered provident fund as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid The comributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available
Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic carmings per share 1s calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable 1o owners of the Parent

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earmings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take mto account
the after income 1ax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contributed equity

Equuty shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as reduction, net of tax from the proceeds

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a lhability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised. and the distribution 1s no longer at the discretion of the Company As per the corporate laws
of India, a distnibution 1s authorised when it 1s approved by the shareholders A ding amount 1s anised directly in equity

Segment reporting

Operaung segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemnal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM’)

The CODM s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Parent Company

New amendments issued but not effective

The Mimstry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 23, 2023 notified Companies (Indian A g Standards) A d Rules, 2022 which amends certain
accounting standards. and are effective Apnil 1, 2023
The Rules predomimantly amend Ind AS 12. Income taxes. and Ind AS 1. P 1on of fi | The other d to Ind AS noufied by these rules are prmanly

in the nature of clanficanons
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foresecable future transactions. Specifically, no
changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment
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Note 4: Property, plant and equipment

(i) Movement in Property, plant and equipment

(Amounts in Rs. Millions. unless stated otherwise)

i o Laacin Plant & Electrical | Lab. Testing Motor Computer and| Furniture Office
Particulars Buildings | Developmen A 3 2 i 2 R Total
: Machinery | Installation | equipments | Vehicles accessories | and fixture | equipments
Balance as at March 31, 2022 181.62 41.14 8£39.11 85.61 5.40 28.74 6.01 7.78 226 1,217.64
Addiions 18 31 141 87 981 = o7 1.05 0.62 096 175.69
Disposals - - - - (1.27) - - (1.27)|
Balance at March 31, 2023 199.93 41.14 1.000.98 95.42 .40 30.54 7.06 8.37 3.22 1.392.06
Additions z 7209 12624 7.00 913 121 042 0.64 216,73
Disposals - - - - - (0.28) - - - (0 28)
Balance at March 31, 2024 199.93 113,23 1,127.21 102.42 5.40 39.39 8.27 8.78 3.86 1.608.49
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30.50 4.18 339.22 51 5.40 15.27 .05 459.26
Deprecianon expense 545 209 30 66 218 - 2.11 003 4301
Disposals - - - - - (0.97) = = - (0.87)
Balance at March 31, 2023 35,95 6.27 369.88 53.26 5.40 16.41 5.90 6.13 2.10 501.30
Depreciation expense 588 2.09 38 82 497 000 358 026 017 031 56.07
Disposals - - - - - (0.27) - - - (0.27)
Balance at March 31, 2024 41.82 8.35 408,68 58.22 5.40 19,72 6.16 6.29 2.42 557.08
Carrying amouni
Balance at March 31, 2023 163.98 34.87 631.10 42.16 - 14.13 1.16 2.24 1.12 890.76
Balance at March 31, 2024 158.11 104.88 718.53 44.20 0.00 19.67 2.11 1.49 1.44 1,051.41
Note: -
(a) Refer Note 17 for detals of secunity against borrowings
(i) Movement in Capital work-in-progress
Capital
Particulars work-in-
progress
Cost / Deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2022 i
Additions 175.69
Transferred to Property, plant and equipment (175 69)
Balance at March 31. 2023 -
Addiions 54 30
Transferred to Property, plant and equipment -
Balance at March 31, 2024 54.30
{a) Ageing analysis of Capital work in progress
Balance at March 31,2024
Project Lek than 110 2 years 2 to 3 years Pore then ) Total
1 year . years
Project in progress 5430 B 2 z 54 30
Project temporanly suspended - - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023
Eariicelars Fei thaw 1 to 2 vears 2 to 3 years More than 3 Total
1 year : : Years

Project in progress
Project temporanly suspended




KROSS Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Note 5: Right of Use Assets (ROU)

This note provides information for leases where the Company 1s a lessee

The Company has taken on lease various offices. warehouses other spaces for its uses Rental contracts typically ranges from | year to 5 years

A.

The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use assets :

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Rs. In Millions

Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Additions during the year 0.85
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year @
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.85
Additions during the period 8.84
Deletions/cancellaton/modification during the period -
Balance at March 31, 2024 9.69
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at March 31, 2022 -
Amorusation expense 3 i
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.17
Amortisation expense 1.75
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the period -
Balance at March 31, 2024 1.92
Carrying amount

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 0.68
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 .37

The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU assets is included under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under note number 30

Movement in lease liabilities :

Particulars

Lease Obligations

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Additions during the year 0.82
Deletions during the year -
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.04
Payment of lease labilities (0.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.68
Additions during the period 8.56
Deletions during the period -
Finance cost accrued during the period 0.66
Payment of lease labilities (1.95)
Balance at March 31, 2024 7.95
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at the vear end:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current 2,75 0.25
Non-current 5.20 043
Total* 7.95 0.68

*with the exception of short term and leases of low-value underlying assets. each lease is reflected in the Balance Sheet as right of use assets and a lease

liability payment made for short term lease and leases of low-value are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term
The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at the vear end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

i As at As at
s March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Less than one vear 275 0.31
One to five vears 520 0.46
More than five years - -
Total* 7.95 0.77

*the Company does not face a significant hquidity risk regards to its lease habilities as the current assets are sufficient to the meet the obligations related to

the lease habihities as and when they fall due
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E The amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss are as follows:

For the yvear ended|For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortisation of right of use assets 1.75 0.17
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.66 0.04
Rent expense - short-term lease and leases of low value assets 10.23 7.71
Total 12.65 7.92

F  Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in various leases These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Company’s operations. The majority of the extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Company and not by the respective lessor

G Discounting rate
The Company has used the incremental borrowing rate of 10% (FY2022-23  10%) to determine the lease habilities

Note 6: Other intangible assets

Particulars Rs. In Millions

Cost / Deemed cost

Balance as at March 31, 2022 533
Additions 010
Disposals -

Balance at March 31, 2023 5.43
Additions 0.77
Disposals -

Balance at March 31, 2024 6.20

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at March 31, 2022 5.23
Amorlisation expense 0.04
Disposals -

Balance at March 31, 2023 5.27
Amortisation expense 0.04
Disposals -

Balance at March 31, 2024 5.30

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2023 0.16
As at March 31, 2024 0.90




KROSS Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended 31 March, 2024

Note 7: Investments

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)

Investments designated at fair value through OCI
Adityapur Auto Cluster

300 (As at March 31, 2023 - 300 equity shares of Rs 1000 each, fully paid up)

030 030

Total Non-current investment
jld _conoourreniamesient

0.30 0.30

Aggregate carrying amount of unguoted investments

0.30 0.30

Note 8: Other financial assets

Particulars

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(i) Non current
{Unsecured. considered good. unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 3125 35.27
(b) Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date# - 30.65
Total Other financial assets - non current 31.28 65.92
{ii) Current

{Unsecured, considered good. unless stated otherwise)

(a) Secunity Deposits 1.75 1.81
Total Other financial assets - current 1.78 1.81

#Deposits balances in the account are not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date are primarily placed as security with banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs
Rs. 70.09 Millions as at March 31, 2023 and with vendors for performance guarantee of Rs 6 24 Millions as at March 31, 2023 There are no deposit balances due for realisation over |12 months from March 31,

2024

Deposit balances due for realisations within 12 months but more than 3 months are classified as other bank balances and are disclosed under note no. 14

Note 9: Other assets

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(i) Nem Current
(Unsecured. considered good. unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

(a) Capnal Advances 3253 3303
Total other non current assets 3253 33.03
(ii) Current

{a)  Advance to supphers and service providers 259.16 210.18
{b)  GST receivables 1227 323
(c) Advances 10 employees 128 108
(d)  Prepaid expenses 286 332
(e) _ Other assets 20.32 11.71
Total other current assets 295.86 229.52
Note 10: Inventories

As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(a) Raw materials® 31756 31568
(b) Work-mn-progress 185.70 73.19
(c) Finished products 30211 186.84
(d) Stores and spare parns 3979
(¢) Consumables 646
Total Inventories 621.96

*Includes stock n transit Rs. 31 38 Millions (March 31. 2023 7 00 Millions)

1 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated i note 3.14

2 For deails of carrying amount of inventories pledged as secunity for secured borrowings refer note 17
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Note 11: Investments

({Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(Carned at fair value through profit & loss)
Investments in Mutual Fund- Unquoted
Aditya Birla Sun Life Advantage Fund- Growth

1) 005 004
67 units (March 31, 2023 67)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Pure Value Fund - Growth Bio 012
") 1683 units (March 31,2023 1.683) -
DSP Mid Cap Fund- Regular Plan - Growth
") 3 260 units (March 31,2023 3,260) 038 0.27
HSBC Small Cap Fund - Growth
™) 9 550 units (March 31,2023 5.554) 066 026
Kotak Emerging Equity Fund-Growth
)" 2545 units (March 31, 2023 2,545) 02 019
Kotak Equity Opportunities Fund - Growth
') 807 units (March 31, 2023 807) 023 017
vii) Aditya Birla Sun Life Small Cap Fund - Growth
" 12,468 units (March 31, 2023 0) 090 2
: Bandhan Small Cap Fund - Growth
Y 38 196 units (March 31, 2023 0) % :
Sundaram Small Cap Fund - Growth
™) 7637 umits (March 31. 2023 0) 1.66 .
1 amount of un investmen market value thereofl 5.31 I.E‘
Agoregale carrying aj nt of unguoted investment 5.31 1.05 |

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment

Note 12: Trade receivables

Particulars

As ar
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good. unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Trade recervables, unsecured, considered good 1,098 38 518.07
Trade receivables, credit impaired 1342 9.71
1.111.80 527.78
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (13.42) (9.71)
Total Trade receivables 1,098.38 518.07
Disclosure of contract balances as per Ind AS 115 revenue from contract with customers
As at As at

March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

Contract balances

Trade receivable - Billed 1,098 38 518.07
Trade receivable - Unbilled = -
Total Contract balances 1,098.38 518.07

As at Myrch 31,2024
Age Reackrt Not Due Less than 6 menths | 6 months to 1 year | 1 yeario2years | 2 years o3 years | Morc than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 1,030.78 71.69 487 (W1 265 1LI1Lo9
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - 071 0.71
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables - 1,030.78 71.69 4.87 111 3.35 1,111.80
Add: Unbilled -
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (13.42)
Total Trade receivables 1,098.38

As at March 31, 2023
Age bracket N

Not Due Less than 6 months | 6 months to | year 1 year to 2 years 2 years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total

Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 508 66 614 802 524.07
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful = = = 2 2.79
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - 092 0.92
Total Ageing of receivables - 508.66 6.14 1.40 11.58 - 527.78
Add Unbulled -
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (9.71)
Total Trade receivables 518.07
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{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note:
(@) The ageing has been determined from the date they were invoiced to the customers. Refer Note 39 on credit risk for more details
(b) Movement in allowances for expected credit loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Allowances for expected credit losses at the begmning of the year 97 -
Allowances created during the year [Refer note 31] 371 971
Allowances uulised / reversed dunng the year = 3
Allowances for expected credit losses for the year 13.42 9.71
Note 13: Cash and cash equivalents

" As at As al
Particul
ariesar March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Cash on hand 1 90 003
Balances with bank in current accounts 5119 86.71
Balances with bank in deposit accounts® 346 43 24
Total cash and cash equivalents 56.55 129.98
=Oniginal maturity of less than three months
Note 14: Other bank balance (Other than (iii) above)
4 As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Balances with bank in deposit accounts# 48 57 1248
Total other bank balances 48.57 12.48

# Deposits balances in the account are due for realisanon within 12 months from the balance sheet date are primanly placed as security wath banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs

70.08 Millions (As at March 31, 2023 Rs 70 00 Millions) and with vendors for performance guarantee of Rs 255 82 Millions (As at March 31, 2023 252 60)

Depasit balance in the account are due for realisation i more than 12 months are disclosed in note number 8 under "Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date™
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Note 15: Equity share capital

As at As at

EaiteOme March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

Authorised share capital
7.00.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 350.00 150.00
(As at March 31, 2023: 1.50.00.000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

20,00.000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 20.00 -
(As at March 31, 2023: Nil equity shares of Rs. Nil each)

Total authorised share capital 370.00 150.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

5.40.92.756 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up 270.46 13523
(As at March 31, 2023: 1,35,23,189 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)

Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 270.46 135.23

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period/ year

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year »35,23,189 135.23 1,35.23,189 135.23
Changes during the period/ vear 4.05.69.567 135.23 - -
Balance at the end of the period/ year 5,40,92,756 270.46 1,35,23,189 135.23

(b) Details of equity shares held by the promoters at the period/ year end

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
N : : ; :
e No. of shares | % of Total Shares| No. of shares %age holding

Sudhir Rai 3.12.00.140 57.68% 78.00.035 57.68%
Anita Rai 1.51.99.816 28.10% 37.99.954 28.10%
Sudhir Rai (HUF) 4,00.000 0.74% 1.00.000 0.74%
Summet Rai 38.00.000 7.02% 9.50.000 7.02%
Kunal Rai 34.92.000 6.46% 8.73.000 6.46%

5,40,91,956 100.00% 1,35,22,989 100.00%

(c) Details of equity shares held by equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name : - ’ - -
No. of shares % of Total Shares No. of shares %age holding
Sudhir Rai 3.12.00.140 57.68% 78.00.035 57.68%
Anita Rai 1.51.99.816 28.10% 37.99.954 28.10%
Summet Rai 38.00.000 7.02% 9.50.000 7.02%
Kunal Rai 34.92.000 6.46% 8.73.000 6.46%
5,36,91,956 99.26% 1,34,22,989 99.26%

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5.00 per share. Each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held.
The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation. the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts. in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(e) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
During the year. the company had issued bonus share in the ratio 1 :1 to its existing equity sharcholder vide their board resolution dated October,
26th 2023 by way of capitalization of its security premium. Company has also split its shares by reducing its per equity share face value by sub-
divided from Rs. 10 each to Rs. 5 each Pursuant to Shareholder's resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on October, 26th
2023.

(f) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has not bought back share during the last 5 years immediately preceeding March 31. 2024.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 16: Other equity

Particulars £ 8l AR
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retained earnings 1,119.50 807.74
General Reserve 70.21 70.21
Security Premium 7.88 7.88
Total Other Equity 1,197.59 885.83
(i) Retained Earnings
Particulars e St
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the vear 807.74 510.72
Profit for the year 448.81 309.31
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (1.83) 1.23
Dividend Paid = (13.52)
Bonus issued during the year/period. (135.23) -
Balance at the end of the vear 1,119.50 807.74
(ii)) General Reserve
Particulars s AL
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the vear 70.21 70.21
Utilised during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 70.21 70.21
(iii) Security Premium
: As at As at
FATDINIAE March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the vear 7.88 7.88
Utilised during the year = =
Balance at the end of the year 7.88 7.88

(a) Retained earnings

Retained earings are the profits that the Company has carned till date. less any transfers to reserves. dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution to shareholder. in case where it is having

positive balance representing net earning ull date

(b) General Reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is

created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income. items included in the general

reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(¢) Security Premium

Share premium used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2023.
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Note 17: Borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

A. Non-current
(a) Secured borrowings - at amortised cost
Term Loans from

- Banks 34621 34493

- Non Banking Financial Institution 1038 20.00

356.59 364.93

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (included in current borrowings) 129.63 92.64

Less: Interest accrued on long-term borrowings (included in current borrowings) 1.71 1.59

Total Long-term borrowings 225.26 270.70
B. Current

(a) Secured borrowings - at amortised cost
(1) Cash Credit from Banks

- Overdraft 796.85 499 37
(1) Current maturities of long-term borrowings 129 63 92.64
(1ii) Interest accrued on long-term borrowings 1.71 1.59
(b) Unsecured borrowings - at amortised cost

- Promotors 17 60 17.60
Total Short-term borrowings 945.79 611.20

Total borrowings 1,171.04 881.90
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Term loan from banks

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Total No. of Earliest Start Maturity Rate of Interest Amount Amount
Partitalscs Installments Date Yo outstanding outstanding
as at as at
March 31 2024 March 31 2023
Canara Bank 60 23-Jan-21 23-Dec-25 7.50 - 1891
Canara Bank 60 17-Dec-21 17-Nov-26 7.50 - 13.70
Canara Bank 15 2-May-22 2-Jul-23 895 - 0.78
Canara Bank 15 2-May-22 2-Jul-23 8.95 - 3.65
Canara Bank 43 2-May-22 2-Nov-25 10.90 - 19.45
Axis Bank 48 31-Oci-21 8-Feb-26 Repo+2.75 17.85 27.17
Axis Bank 48] 28-Feb-22 31-Jan-28] _ Repo+2.75 20 80 21.70
Axis Bank 58 31-Oct-21 1-Nov-26 Repo+3.25 10.69 14.83
Axis Bank 49 31-Oct-21 30-Nov-25 Repo+3.25 30.36 50.36
Axis Bank 29 31-Aug-23 31-Jan-26, Repo+2.75 12.03 0.25
Axis Bank 35 31-Aug-23 31-Dec-26] Repo+2 75 12.56 -
Axis Bank 28 31-Aug-23 31-Dec-25 Repo+3.25 11.55 -
Axis Bank 60 5-Mar-24 5-Feb-29 9.95 049 0.33
HDFC Bank 48 7-Dec-20 7-Nov-24 890 011 0.06
|HDEC Bank 36 5-Sep-18 5-Aug-23 925 8 047
HDFC Bank 36 S-Jul-18 5-Jun-23 925 - 0.69
HDFC Bank 36 7-Mar-21 7-Feb-24 8.90 - 084
HDFC Bank 60 7-Nov-22 7-0c1-27 8.25 0.38 4623
HDEC Bank 48 3-Jun-22 5-Mav-26 7.26 0.49 2590
HDFC Bank 48 5-Jan-23 5-Dec-26 8.70 0.64 1618
HDFC Bank 48 7-Jun-23 7-May-28 9.15 0.52 14.74
HDFC Bank 48 7-Nov-23 7-Oct-27 885 1.72 6.65
HDFC Bank 48 5-Mar-24 5-Feb-28 951 1.02 15.37
HDFC Bank 36 15-Sep-18 15-Aug-23 11.00 - 244
HDFC Bank 48 1-Mar-21 31-Jan-26| 935 30.38 8.34
HDFC Bank 48 1-May-22 1-Apr-28 9.25 2590 23.36
HDFC Bank 34 1-Jan-23 28-Dec-27 942 15.24 793
HDFC Bank 34 1-Mar-23 28-Dec-27 942 13.79 3.07
HDFC Bank 34 1-Feb-23 28-Dec-27 942 6.23 -
HDFC Bank 34 1-Jan-23 28-Dec-27 942 14.44 -
HDFC Bank 34 1-Apr-23 28-Dec-27 942 779 -
HDFC Bank 34 1-Apr-23 28-Dec-27, 942 228 -
HDFC Bank 34 1-May-23 28-Dec-27, 942 3.32 -
HDFC Bank 34 1-Jul-23 28-Dec-27, 942 378 -
HDFC Bank 54 1-Sep-22 4-Aug-27) 9.70 18.02 -
HDFC Bank 54 1-Oct-22 4-Aug-27 9.70 6.12 -
HDFC Bank 54 1-Dec-22 4-Aug-27 9.70 2.37 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Jan-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 26 56 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Jan-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 9.74 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Jan-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 19.51 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Feb-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 7.69 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Mar-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 3.62 -
HDFC Bank 48 1-Apr-24 29-Feb-28 8.64 2.00 -
PNB Bank 84] 4-Dec-23 4-Nov-30 9.00 458 =
Interest accrued on long-term borrowings (included in current borrowings) 1.64 1.55
346.21 344.93
Term loan from Non Banking Financial Institution
Amount Amount
Particalars Total No. of Earliest Start Matarity Rate of Interest outstanding outstanding
Installments Date . Yo as at as at
March 31 2024 March 31 2023
Daimler Financial Services 60 4-Dec-20 4-Nov-23 10.00 4.77 5.85
Siemens Financial Services 48 12-Dec-21 12-Nov-23 10.00 0.71 1.09
Siemens Financial Services 53 18-Mar-19 18-Jul-23 10.00 - 022
Siemens Financial Services 53 1 8-Mar-19 18-Jul-23 10.00 - 045
Siemens Financial Services 53 28-Jun-19 28-Oct-23 11.00 - 0.63
Siemens Financial Services 36 28-Feb-21 29-Jan-24 10.50 - 1.22
Siemens Financial Services 36 30-Dec-20 30-Nov-23 1050 - 2.21
Siemens Financial Services 18 8-Apr-21 8-Mar-25 10.50 129 2.70
Siemens Financial Services 48 25-Nov-21 23-Oct-25 10.00 0.51 0.80
Siemens Financial Services 48 14-Oct-21 14-Sep-25 10.25 303 4.80
Interest accrued on long-term borrowings (included in current borrowings) 0.06 0.04
10,38 20.00
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Security Details

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31, 2024

Long-term Short-term Current
Name of the bank Matarity Security
Rs. Millions Rs. Millions Rs. Millions

Secured by pan passu first charge on all current assets (current and future) of]

DBS Bank 150.00 - |Company and pan passu first charge on all movable fixed assets and lease]
hold property of Company .
Secured by pari passu first charge on all current assets (current and future) of
Company and pan passu first charge on specified lease hold property of]

s Pk 58.63 360,50 5769 Company and exclusive charge on few lease hold land
For tem loan: Personal guarantee from promoters and exclusive charge on the|
plant and machinary constructed out of this fund
Secured by pari passu first charge on stock with and recervables up to 120
days (excluding Tata Motors), pan passu first charge on specified lease hold
property of Company, Pan-passu first charge on entire Plant and Machinery
(Excluding Assets specifically financed by Siemens and L.&T Finance) and
fixed deposit

|HDFC Bank 157,58 286 35 66.09 i
For tem loan: Secured by Pan-passu second charge over the enlire current
assets of the Company, both present and future, exclusive charge on Plant and
Machinenes procured from the Term Loan and personal guarantees from
promoters
For vehicle loan: Hynothecation of respective vehicle

SIEMENS Financial Services 1.43 - 4.12 |Secured by hypothecation of respective assets financed

DAIMLER Financial Services 3.56 - 1.20 |Secured by hypothecation of respective assets financed

Punjab National Bank 405 - 0.53 |Secured by hypothecation of respective assets financed

Note 18: Provisions

Particulars L8t Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current

(a) Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratity [Refer note 35) 48.96 4556

Total Long-term provisions 48,96 45.56
Current

(a) Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 35] 514 437

(b) Provision for warranty [refer note 33] 1.30 0.46

Total Short-term provisions 6,44 4.83
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Note 19: Income Taxes

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Analysis of Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year
ended
March 31, 2024

For the vear
ended
March 31, 2023

(1) Amount recognised in profit or loss

(a) Current tax 154 89 100.80
(b) Current tax for the earlier years 560 0.98
(c) Deferred tax 3.60 6.01
164.09 107.79
(ii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
(a) Deferred tax (0.62) 0.41
(0.62) 0.41
Total income tax expenses 163.47 108.20
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax 612.90 417.10
At India's statutory Income tax rate of 25 168% (March 31, 2023 25 168%) 154 27 104 98
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income 3.60 224
Adjustment for change in tax rate - -
Income tax related to earlier vears 5.60 0.98
Income tax expense reported 163.47 108.20

The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act. 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019

For the vear end

Deferred tax

ed March 31, 2024

Particulars l?ala{nce a e‘\penscl Dcr"".:d tax Balance at end of
beginning of the (income) expense/ (income)
SR Sl s the year
year recognised in | recognised in OCI s
profit and loss
Deferred tax assets
Prowvisions for emplovee benefits (12.57) (3.73) 0.62 (15.69)
Lease liabihties (0.17) (1.83) - (2.00)
Allowance for credit losses (2.44) (0.94) - (3.38)
Disallowance under 43(B)(h) - (3.96) (3.96)
Provision for Warranty (2.16) 1.83 - (0.33)
Total deferred tax assets (17.34) (8.63) 0.62 (25.35)
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 7342 9.06 - 8248
Fair value changes of investments 011 185 - 1.96
Right of Use Assets 0.17 0.10 - 0.27
Total deferred tax liabilities 73.70 11.01 - 84.71
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 56.36 2.39 0.62 59.36
For the vear ended March 31, 2023
Deferred tax
Particulars I.lah.nce at e_tpensef Deferre;d tax Balanceat endof
beginning of the {income) expense/ (income)
year recognised in | recognised in OCI i
profit and loss
Deferred tax assets
Provisions for employee benefits (1247) (051 041 (12.57)
Lease habilities (017) - (0.17)
Allowance for credit losses (151) (0.93) - (2.44)
Others - (2.16) - (2.16)
Total deferred tax assets (13.98) 3.77) 0.41 (17.34)
Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and Intangible assets 63.86 956 - 73.42
Fair value changes of investments 0.06 005 s 0.11
Right of Use Assets - 017 - 0.17
Total deferred tax liabilities 63.92 9.78 = 73.70
Net deferred tax assctsf(li:ll)iTilicsl 49,95 6.01 0.41 56.37
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Note 20: Trade payables

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particular

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note below) 89.91 52.76
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 397.60 287.67
[ Total Trade pavables 487.51 340.43 |
Ageing of trade payables
As at March 31, 2024
Particular i i
Unbilled Not due Less than | year 1-2 yeares 2-3 years More than 3 years| Total
(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - - 8991 - - - 89.91
(ii) Undisputed - Others - - 383 34 1426 - - 397.60
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 473.25 14.26 - - 487.51
As at March 31, 2023
Enrticlers Unbilled Not due Less than | year 1-2 yeares 2-3 years More than 3 years| Total
(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - - 52.76 - - - 52.76
(ii) Undisputed - Others - - 283.34 433 - - 287.67
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 336.10 4.33 - - 340.43
(a) The ageing has been determined from the date of the invoice
(b) As per information available with the Company there are no dues of micro and small enterprises except as disclosed above
Note 21: Other financial liabilities
Particulars AZAL AL st
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
(a) Payable to employees 26.58 2253
(b) Other payables 52.66 5.98
Total Current Other Financial Liabilities 79.24 28.51
Total Other financial liabilities 79.24 28.51
Note 22: Current tax liabilities (Net)
Particulars L hol
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for taxes (net) ** 86.77 48.14
Total Other current assets 86.77 48.14
**[Net of Advance taxes (including TDS and TCS assets receivable) Rs. 74 88 Millions [As at March 31, 2023: Rs 58 05 Millions]
Note 23: Other current liabilities
Parficalars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
(a) Statutory Dues 104.71 78.23
Total Other current liabilities 104.71 78.23
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Note 24: Revenue from operations

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

i e March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Sale of Products 6.025.78 4.596.83
(b) Sale of Services 10.00 283
(¢) Other Operating Revenue 166.72 286.62
Total revenue from operations 6,202.50 4,886.28

Note:

(a) The Company recognises revenue when control over the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services

(b) The Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(c) The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services overtime, as when such services are performed

Note 25: Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

EREORSINES March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(1) Interest income from deposits with banks 6.93 391
(11) Unwinding of interest on long term security deposit 0.05 0.01
(b) Income from mutual fund
(1) Net fair value gains on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 0.64 0.19
through profit or loss
(¢) Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 4.50 311
(d) Profit on sale of property. plant and equipments 0.02 0.07
Total other income 12.14 7.29

Note 26: Cost of raw materials consumed

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Raw materials consumed

(a) Opening stock 315.68 16642
(b) Add: Purchases 3,788.69 3.090.92
4.104.37 3.257.34

(c) Less: Closing stock 317.56 315.68
Total raw materials consumed 3.786.81 2,941.66

Note 27: Changes in inventories of finished products and work in progress

For the year ended

For the year ended

> i P
acicwts March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year
(a) Finished Product 186.84 161.33
(b) Work in Progress 73.19 54.13
260.03 215.46
Inventories at the end of the year
(a) Finished Product 302.11 186.84
(b) Work in Progress 185.70 73.19
487.81 260.03
Net (increase)/decrease in inventory ~ (227.78 (44.57)

Note 28: Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Heisiieenin March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(a) Salaries., Wages and Bonus 277.98 241.51
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 1343 12.26
(¢) Gratuity (Refer note 35) 792 763
(d) Staff welfare expenses 4.90 3.69

Total employee benefits expense 304.23 265.09
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Note 29: Finance costs

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
. i ! : 93.51 73.62
- Interest expenses on short-term borrowings from banks and financial institutions ‘
- Interest expenses on term loans banks 33.88 31.47
- Interest others 414 0.12
(b) Interest on lease obligations 0.66 0.04
(¢) Interest expense for short fall on payment of income tax 7.19 8.78
(d) Other borrowing costs 9.58 8.16
Total finance costs 148.96 122.19

Note 30: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the vear ended

For the vear ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 56.07 43.01
(b) Amortisation of Intangible assets 0.04 0.04
(¢) Amorusation of right of use assets 1.75 0.17
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 57.86 43.22

Note 31: Other expense

For the vear ended

For the yvear ended

paicsise March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
(a) Consumption of stores. spare parts and consumables 343.72 33495
(b) Freight. transportation and handling charges 216.53 160.24
(c) Power & Fuel expense 256.63 158.38
(d) Contractual labour charges 35385 21330
(e) Work offloading charges 8641 101.55
(f) Commission 294 24.59
(g) Packing and forwarding expenses 3988 3111
(h) Material Handling & Weightment charges 12.14 7.95
(1) Repairs and maintenance expenses

- Building 40.79 24 67

- Plant & Equipments 10.96 44

- Others 497 7.28

(j) Travelling, Conveyance, Vehicle Running & Maintenance expenses 36.02 26.79
(k) Corporate Social Responsibility [Refer note - 43] 441 843
(1) Rental expenses 10.23 1.7)
(m) Insurance Charges 379 244
(n) Warehouse, Yard and Branch Expenses 4.13 4.05
(0) Allowances for expected credit loss 3.83 371
(p) Provision for warranty expenses [Refer note - 33 15.83 8.22
(q) Rates & Taxes 1.90 1.92
(r) Legal & Professional Charges 4543 1.75
(s) Auditors' Remuneration |Refer note - 31.1] 1.80 0.25
(1) Other general expenses 35.47 15.18
Total other expenses 1.531.66 1,148.88

Note 31.1 : Auditors' Remuneration

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audit fees - statutory audit 0.50 0.20
Audit fees - tax audit - 0.05
Certification 1.26 -
Income Tax Matters 0.04 -
Total Auditor's Remuneration 1.80 0.25
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Note 32: Earnings per share

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Calculation of EPS after giving effect of bonus issue and split

Profit after tax for the vear (in Rs. Millions)

Profit available to the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a)

Number of equity shares at the end of the vear (b)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/ year (c)
Earnings per share (a/b)

Basic earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.)

Diluted earnings per equity share (a/c) (in Rs.)

Face Value per share

Calculation of EPS prior to issuance of bonus and_share split

Profit after tax for the period/ year (in Rs. Millions)

Profit available to the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a)

Number of equity shares at the end of the year (b)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/ year (c)
Earnings per share (a/b)

448 81
448 81
5.40,92.756
5.40.92.756

8.30
8.30
5.00

448 .81
448 81
5.40.92.756
5.40.92.756

309.31
309.31
5.40.92,756
5.40.92.756

5.72
5.72
5.00

309.31
30931
1.35.23,189
1,35.23,189

Basic earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.) 8.30 22.87
Diluted earnings per equity share (a/c) (in Rs.) 8.30 22.87
Face Value per share 5.00 10.00

* refer note number 321 and 32 2 below.

32.1 The company has issued and allotted 13.523.189 equity bonus shares in ratio of 1 (one) fully paid up bonus share of the face value of Rs. 10 each
for every existing 1 (one) fully-paid equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each held as approved by the members at the annual general meeting
held on October 26, 2023 In terms of IND AS 33, impact of the same has been considered in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS for the

year ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 retrospectively.

32.2 Pursuant to Shareholder's resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on October 26. 2023. the face value per equity share of the
company was subdivided from Rs. 10 each to Rs_ 5 each. Accordingly, the calculation above reflects the effect of share split retrospectively for all

the periods presented

Note 33: Warranty against products

The Company extends warranty on certain products manufactured and sold by it. The Company provides for any anticipated warranty costs at the time
of recognising the sale based on technical evaluation and estimated costs. The details of movement of provision for warranty are given below:

For the year ended

For the vear ended

FaTEna March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Opening balance at the beginning of the vear 0.46 -
Provisions recognised during the year 1583 822
Utilised for meeting the warranty costs (14.98) (7.76)
Unutilised provisions reversed during the year - -
Closing balance at the end of the vear [Refer note 19] 1.30 0.46
Note 34: Contingencies and Commitments
As at As at
a) Contingent liabilities
(a) Conting - March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
(i)  Excise duty and service tax matters in dispute relating to applicability and classification 27.67 -
(1) Sales tax/ GST in dispute relating to issues of applicability and classification 347 1.25
(1)) Income tax matters in dispute 1699 25.28
(v) Bills Discounted with Kotak Mahindra Bank*** 31550 342.00

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the imings of the cash outflows. if any. pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company

does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the same

"*** Bills Discounted with recourse to the company with Kotak Mahindra Bank

(b) Commitments

As al
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(1) Capital Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for in

the books of account

(1) Other Commitment

99.17

30.81
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 35: Employee Benefits

Employees Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund

The Company provides Provident Fund facility 10 its eligible emplovees The fund 1s managed bv Commussioner of the Provident Fund The contnbutions are expensed as thev are incurred i line with the treatment of
wages and salanes. The hability of the Company 1s limited to the contnbution deducted from the salary of the emplovee and the Compamy’s share. Duning the vear ended March 31. 2024, the Company made
contribution plans amounung to Rs 13 43 Millions (for the year ended March 31. 2023° Rs. 12 26 Millions) and same has been recogmsed as an expense in the Statement of Profit and loss

Employee Defined Benefit Plans - Gramity [funded]

The Company provides for gratmty for employees as per the Pavment of Gratmty Act 1972 Emplovees who are in conunuous service for a penod of 3 years are eligible for gratwity. The amount of gratuity pavable on
retirement/termination of the emplovees last drawn basic salary per month computed proporuonately for 15 days salarv muluplied by the number of vears of service The graunty plan is a funded plan The Company
does not fully fund the habilitv and make the payments as and when they become due from its own funds

Amounts recognised in the financial statements
The amounts recogmised in the financial statements and the movementis i the net defined benefit obligauon and fr value of plan assets 1s as under

. Defined benefit | Fair value of plan .
Particulars ST Net amouni
obligations assels
Balance as at March 31, 2022 50.26 0.73 49.53
Current service cost 432 - 432
Interest expense/ mcome 339 v.08 331
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7.71 0.08 7.63
Remeasurement
Retumn on plan assets. excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - wo9 (0.09)
Actuanal (gain)loss irom change m demographic assumptions - - -
Acuanal (gam)loss from change in financial assumpuions (2.32) - (2.32)]
Actuanal li.:un)'loss from unexpected expenience 077 - 0717
Total amount recognised in OCI 153) 0.09 (1.64)]
Emplover contnbutions’ premium pad = 520 (3.20)
Benefit payments 206 167 (0 39)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 54.36 4.43 49.93
Current service cost 437 437
Interest expense’ income 393 037 3.56
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8.30 0.37 792
Remeasurement -
Retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included i interest expense/(income) - (0 69) 069
Acwanal (gain)ioss from change in demographic assumpuons - - -
Actuanal (gain)Vloss (rom change in financial assumplions 1.25 = 1.25
Aciuarial (gain)loss from unexpecied expenence 031 - 0.51
Total amount recognised in OCI 176 10.69)] — 245
Emplover contnbutions/ premium pad - 620 (6.20/
Benefil payments 267 267 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 61.75 7.64 401
(i) Classification of the obligation into current and non current
. As at As at
Emcticidars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Current 314 437
Non-Current 4896 4356
Total 54.11 49.93
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial asswmp
- . As al As at
i b i i fobares: March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Rate ol discounting 720% 7.45%
Rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Indian Assured Lives|Indian Assured Lives
Moriality rate duning emplovment Mortahity (2012-14) | Mortahty (2012-14)
ulumate ulimate
(i) Sensitivity analysis
Paivculats For the year ended | For (he year ended |
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted pnncipal
assumptions is Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+/- ( (2.46)) 262 (2.18)] 231
Salary growth rate (+/- 0.3 %) 2.51 (243) 224 (2. IR)

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumplions occurming at the end of the reporting period. while holding all other assumpuions constant
The sensiuvity analysis presented above may nol be representative of the aciual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikelv that the change in assumplions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated

Furthermore. in presenting the above sensitmaty analvsis. the present value of the projecied benefit ob
same method as applied n calculatng the projecied benefit obligauon as recogmsed in the balance sheet

tion has been calculated using the projectied unit cr=dit method at the end of the reporting penod. which 1s the

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in prepanng the sensiuvity analvsis from pnor vears

(iv) Major categories of plans assel

Particulars As at As al

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Funded by policy of msurance with LIC 764 443
v) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Company 1s exposed 1o a number of nsks. the most sigmificant of which are detailed below

Actuarial Risk:

Adverse Salary Growth Expenience  Salany hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalaton will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that 1s higher than expected

Vanability in withdrawal rates I actual withdrawal rates are ligher than assumed withdrawal rate assumpuon then the Gratuty Benefits will be pad earfier than expecied The impact of this will depend on whether
the benefits are vested as al the resignauon date

Vanabihity immortahity rates  If actual monahity rates are higher than assumed mortaliy rate assumption then the Gramun Benefits will be paid earlier than expecied Since there is no condition of vesung on the death
benefil, the accelerauon of cash flow will lead 10 an aciuanal loss or gan depending on the relauve values of the assumed salarv growth and discount rate
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions. unless stated otherwise)

Investmenr Risk:
For funded plans that relv on insurers for managing the assets. the value ol assets cerufied by the insurer mav not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases _the present value of the assets is
independent of the future discount rate This can result in wide fuctuations m the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period

Discount rate risk:

Liguidity risk:

Employees with high salanes and long durations or those higher in hierarchy. accumulate significant level of benefits. I some of such emplovees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cash flows.
Marker Risk:

Market nsk 15 a collective term for nsks that are related to the changes and fluctuauons of the financial markets One actuanal assumpuon that has a matenal effect is the discount rate The discount rate reflects the
ume value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 10 decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the vields on the corporate/govemment bonds and
hence the valuation of hability 1s exposed to fluctuauons in the vields as at the valuauon date

Regulatory Risk:
Gratwity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There 15 a nsk of change in the regulations requinng higher gratwmty pavments (e g rasing the
present certling of Rs. 2 Millions. rmsing accrual rate from 15/26 etc )

Dunng the vear ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 there were no di I and seut! in the gratuity plan and post retirement pension plans
(vi) Other disclosures

a Expecied coninbution for next vear (12 months) 2023-24 Rs 51 41Millions

b. Weighted average durauon of the defined benefit obligation 1s 8 76 vears (March 31, 2023: 8 93 vears)

c. Esumated Cash Flows (Undiscounted) in subsequent vears

As at Asat
Particulars
_m March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
‘Within 1 vear 393 333
210 5 years 21.82 1883
6 1o 10 vears 3421 28.37
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Note 36: Financial Instruments and fair value measurements
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company at the end of the year and the transition date is as under:

Classification As at As at
Particulars of the assets / .‘.\ln_rtl L e
liabilities s vy Fair value Chryleg Fair value
amount amount
Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments FVOCI 0.30 030 030 0.30
Trade receivables Amortised Cost 1.098 38 1.098 38 51807 518.07
Investments i mutual fund FVTPL 5.31 5.31 1.05 1.05
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 56.55 56.55 129.98 129.98
Other balances with bank Amortsed Cost 48 57 48.57 1248 1248
LOthcr Financial assets (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 33.00 33.00 67.73 67.73
Total 1,242.10 1,242.10 729.61 729.61
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings (including current maturity and accrued interest thereon) Amortised Cost 356.59 356.59 364 93 364 93
Short-term borrowings Amortised Cost 814 45 814 45 51697 51697
Lease habilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 795 7.95 068 0.68
Trade payables Amortised Cost 48751 48751 34043 34043
Other financial liabilities (Current & non-current) Amontised Cost 79.24 79.24 2851 2851
Total 1,066.07 1,066.07 1,253.77 1,253.77

()

(n)
(i11)

{iv)

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and habilines carned at amortised cost closely approximate to their fair values as the impact of discounting on such
financial assets or liabilities is not significant considering the instruments matures in a very short time

Unsecured loans from related parties are repayable on demand and accordingly represents its fair value

Long-term secunity deposits are repayable on closure of contracts i, repayable on demand and accordingly carrying amount reflect its fair values. The same can be
categorised as Level 3 fair value

Long-term borrowings carries both fixed and vanable rate of interest. For vanable interest rate borrowings, carrying amounts are considered to represent fair value of
such borrowings. For fixed rate borrowings fair values have been determined using discounted cash flow approach using the current interest rates. The fair values of the
borrowings can be categonised as Level 2 fair values

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed m the financial statements To provide an indication about the reliability of the mputs used in determiming
fair value. the Company has classitied its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard

(a) Level 1 - Quoted prices in an active market:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(b)  Level 2 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with observable inputs:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maxinuse the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable. the instrument is included in
level 2
(¢} Level 3 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and financial liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair
values are determined in whole or in part. using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are thev based on available market data
The following table summarises the financial assets and liabilines measured at fair value on a recurning basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (but fair value disclosure are required)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Other investments classified as fair value through OCI - Non current - - 0.30 - - 0.30
Current investments classified as fair value through PL 531 - - 1.05 - -

There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 duning any of the penods’ vears
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Nute 37: Capital management

Risk management
The Company 's objectives when managing capital are 1o

{a) safeguard their ability to continuc as a going concem. so that they can continue (o provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. and
{b) Maintain an optimal capital structurc to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Company consists of debi. cash and cash cquivalents and cquity atributable 10 equity sharcholders of the Company which comprises issued share capital and accumulaicd reserves disclosed in
the Statement of Changes in Equity and debts appearing as part of the borrow ings

The capital suucturc of the Company i based on management s judgement of the appropriaic balance of key clements i order to mect its stralegic and day-to-day nceds. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic condiuons and the requirements of the financial covenanis The funding requircment 15 met through a mixture of cquity. long term borrowings and short term
borrowmngs

Note 38: Reconciliation of Debt
This section sets out an analvsis of debt and the movemenis therom

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Long-tcrm borrowings mcluding current matunuics 22526 36493
Short-term borrowings M43 79 51697
Lease obligations (curreni and non-curent) _715 0.68
1.179.00 8R158

'l'-:ﬁ":::'::. Short-term Leas ahilgstions

Particulars : fcurrent and non-

including current borrowings
maturifics corremt)

|Balance as at March 31, 2022 34013 22043 -
Borrowings recogmsed fon new leases aken duning the vear - %2
Procecds from borrowmgs duning the vcar 12907 100 00 -
Interest expense for the vear 3159 M 0nd4
Interest paid during the vear (31 26) (73.74) -
Repavment of borrowmngs / lease hability dusing the vear (11 6Dy (103 46)| (0 I%)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 364,93 216,97 068
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken duning the period/ year - - 8.56
Procceds from borrowings during the penod/ year 165 26 297 4% -
Interest expense for the period/ vear 338K 93 51 -
Intcrest pasd during the peniod/ year (3217 (93.31) 0.66
Repavment of borrowings / lease hability during the penod’ vear (175 30) . (1.95)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 35659 814,45 795

Note 39: Financial sk managemeni
In the coursc of its busimess. the Compam 15 cxposed primanh 1o fluctuatons i nterest rates. hquidity and credn risk. which may adverselv impact the faw value of its financial mstruments In order 10 mnimise any
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. the Company has risk management policics as described below

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the nisk that counterparty will not mect its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss The Company 15 exposed 1o credit nisk from its operating acuvitics
(primarih wadc recenables) mchuding deposis with hanks and fmancial msiwuons. forcign exchange transactions. other financal mstruments carned at amortised cost

Financial instruments that are subgect to credut nisk and concentrauon thereof principally consist of wade recenables. cash and cash cqunalents and other bank balances held by the Compamy Tradc recenvables. cash
and cash cquivalents and other bank balances of the Company result in matcnal concentration of credi nisk.

The carrying valuc of fimancial asscis represent the maximum credit sk The maximum exposurc to credit risk beng the total carmving value of wrade recenvables. balances with bank. bank deposas. and other
financial assets arc as follows-

Period Maximum Credit Risk (in Rs.
Millions)
FY 23-24 1.242 10}
FY 22-23 72961
Trade receivables

Customer credit nish 15 managed by the Company through cstablished policy and proccdures and control relating (o customer crednt nsh management. Trade recenvables are non-interest bearng and are generally
carrving 30 1o 60 days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at vanous levels withn the organisation 1o ensure proper atiention and focus for realisation. The
Company penodically assesses the financial rehabiliy of customers. 1akng into account the financial condwon, current cconomic trends and ageing of accounts recenable

Financial assets are considered to be of good guality and there 15 no sigmificant merease i credit rsk

The requirement for impawrment 1s anahsed at cach reporung date The Company’ receivables turnover 1s quick and historically. there was no significant defaulis on accouni of those cusiomer i the past Ind AS
requircs an catity to recogmise n profit or loss, the amount of expected credt losscs (or reversal) that is requercd 1o adjust the Joss allowance at the reporung date (o the amount that is required 10 be recogmised m
accordance with Ind AS 109, Fmancial Instruments. Expected credit losses are measured al an amount cqual to the life time cxpecied credit losses. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expecied credu loss allowance for wrade recenvables bascd on a provision mainx The provision marix takes mto account historical credat loss expenence and adusted for forward-looking mnformavon. The
outstanding recenvables are regularly monitored to minimise the credit nsk

The Company evaluates the concentration of nsk with respect to trade receivables as low. as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industrics and operate in largeh indcpendent markets. Of the vrade
receivables balance. Rs. 553 75 Milhions i aggregate (Rs. 251 97 Millions as at March 31, 2023) 1s duc from the Company’s customers mdnidually representing morc than 5% of the total trade recenvables balince
and accountcd for approxmmately "s 49 81% as at March 31. 2024 41% as at March 31, 2023 of all the recenvables outstanding.

Other financial instruments and hank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Compam’s finance department n accordance with the Company’s polics. Counterpanty credit hmuts are reviewed by the Parent Compamy's Board of
Dircctors on an annual basis. and may hc wpdaied throughout the vear subject to approval of the Company's Board of Dircciors The limuts are sci 10 mmmise the concentration of nisks and therefore mingate
financaal loss through counterparny s potenual farlure 10 make payments

Balances with banks and dcposits are placed on

v with highly raied banks fmancial insin

(B) Liguidity risk
Liqudity risk 1s the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty m meetng obligatons associated with financial habilives that are seuled by delivering cash or another financial asset
Managcment momtors rollmg forccasts of the Compam's hiqusdity posison and cash and cash cquivalents on the basis of expecied cash Mows This is generally performed w accordance with pracuce and himats set
by the Compam
Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below anahse the Company’s financial habiliies mito relevant mawrny based on thowr contractual matunucs

The amounts disclosed i the table arc the contraciual undiscounted cash flows Balances due within 12 months cqual thew carnvng balances as the impact of discounting 1s not sigmificant
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Contractual Maturitics of financial liabilities

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwisc)

Contractual maturities of financial liabilitics

As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 23 years Mare than 3 years Tutal

Borrowings and intcrest thercon 1.029 40 7432 3561 1.292.74
Lease liabilitics 208 208 I 62 795
[ Trade payables 487 51 - - - 487351
Other financial habilucs 7924 - = & 79.24
Total financial liabilitics 1,598.23 135.60 T6.40 51.22 186745
As at March 31, 2023 Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mure than 3 years, Tortal

Borrowings and mterest thereon T34 98 130 76 104 80 91 34 1L062.08
Lease habiliues n2s 028 0IR 068
Trade payables 336.10 4133 - - 34043
Other financial habihves 30.76 . = 30.76
Total financial liabi 1,102.09 135.34 104,98 91.54 1,433.95

(C) Market Risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 15 the nisk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financal n:
rates relates pnimanky o the Compamy s debi obligatsons with floatmg

INLETCSL Falcs

ment will Muctuate because of changes i market interest rates. The Company s exposure to the nsk of changes i market interest

The Company s fixed rate borrowmgs are camed at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject (o interest rate nish. since neither the carnving amount nor the future cash fMlows will Nuctuate because of a change

m market inicrest ratcs

Interest rate risk exposure on financial habilitics

Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixcd ratc borrowngs 13763 473
Vanable rate borrowings 1.033 40 TR7A7
Total borrowings 117104 88190

Sensitivity te changes in interest rates

Profit or loss is sensinve 1o higher/ lower mierest cxpense from borrowmgs as a result of changes m mierest raics as befow

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Particulars
Impact on
rofit befure tay
Inicrest expense 1aics — increase by 30 basis pownis ( 50 bpsi* 317
Interest expense raics — decrease by 50 basis pomis (50 bps)* 51N

Impact on equity

3K7

(387)

st o Impact un cquity
profit before tax | " g

394 295

(3.94) (295)

* Holding all other variables constani

Forcign currency risk

The Company undertakes transactions (¢ g sak of goods. forcign currency loan, purchase of raw maicnals. cic ) denominated i forcign currencies and thus s exposed to exchange rate fluciuations The Company

evaluates its exchange rate cxposure arising from forcign currency transacuons and manages the same based upon approved risk management policics  The carmving amounts of the Compam's forcign currency
denommated monetary asscis and monetary habilities at the end of the reporuing penied arc as follows

For the year ended

Fur the year ended

e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Muonetary Munctary
s Monctary Assels Monctary Asscls
liabilitics 2
US Dollar (not hedged) = 1038 - 741
EURO inot hedged) - 47.54 - 101

Sensitivity to changes in cxchange rate
The following table details the Company’s sen

1y o a 10% incre

and decrease in exchange rate between the pans of currencies. The sensitn ity anahvsis mcludes only outstanding foreign currency

denominated monctary stems and adjusts thew translation at the peniod end for 1% change i forcign cumrency rates. The sensitvaty analvsis has been underiaken on net unhedged cxposure i foreign cumency

For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Eenpact on Impact on equity it s- Impact on cquity

prufit before tay ~_| profit hefore tax E

Increasc m ratc of | USD agamst Rs. by 10% 1 06 07 074 035
Decrease w rate of | USD agamst Rs by 10% (1.06) (0.79) (0.74) (0.33)
Increase i rate of | EURO agamst Rs. by 10% 478 336 ol 0.07
Decrease in raie of 1 EURO agamst Rs by 10% i475) {3.56) {010y _{0.07




KROSS Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Note 40: Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties and relationshi

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

ISI.‘ . |Particulars

Relationship / Designation

Related parties where control exists :

(n) JFirm where director 1s a proprietor

(i) |Hindu undivided Family of Director

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) :

(1) |Mr. Sudhir Rai
(n) | Mrs. Anita Ra1
(i) |Mr. Sumeet Rai
(v} [Mr. Kunal Rai

(v] |Mr K Suresh Babu (resigned w.e f October 21, 2023)

(vi) [Mr. Rahul Rungta (resigned w e f May. 2023)
(vit) |Mrs. Sangita Kuman Agarwal (resigned w e f November 16, 2023)
(viii) |Ms. Debolina Karmakar ( Appomnted w e { November 16, 2023)

(1x) [Mr. Sanpv Paul (Appointed w.e f October 26, 2023)
(x) Mr. Gurvinder Singh Ahuja { Appointed w.e.f October 26, 2023)
(x1) J.\ir Mukesh Kumar Agarwal ( Appomted w e f October 26, 2023)

(1)  |Enterpnses over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives are able 1o exercise sigmficant influence

Tuff Seals Private Limuted
Bull Auto Parts

Dipak Rai (HUF) [ Sudhir Rai - Karta]

Chairman and Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO
Director

Company Secretary

Company Secretary

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

(xi1) |Mrs. Deepa Verma (Appointed w.e.f October 26, 2023) Independent Director
(b) Transactions with the related parties
Transaction Transaction
oo N = _— . Nature of Amount for | Outstanding | Amount for | Outstanding
SL No. ame of the Related party elationship el the year ended the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tuff Seals Private Limited Enterprises over which key Management
1 Personnel and thew relauves are able 1o exercise | Purchase of goods 3.20 045 319 048
significant influence
2 |Bull Auto Pans Firm where director 1s a proprietor Sale of goods 155.98 52.79 80.93 9.98
Mr. Sudhir Rar Chairman and Managing Director Remuneration 60 0.25 315 027
3 Unsecured Loan - 12.53 - 12.53
Dividend Paid - - 7.80 -
Mrs. Anita Rai Whole Time Director Remuncration 240 0.14 204 014
4 Unsecured Loan - 342 - 342
Dividend Paid = = 3.80 -
Mr. Sumeet Rai Whole Time Director Remuneration 240 0.14 204 0.38
S Unsecured Loan - 086 - 0.86
Dividend Paid - - 0.95 -
Mr. Kunal Rai Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO Remuneration 240 0.10 204 011
6 Unsecured Loan - 0.79 - 0.79
Dividend Paird - - 0.87 -
Dipak Rai (HUF) Shareholder
7 [ Sudhir Rai - Karta] Dividend Paid - - 0.10 -
Mr. K Suresh Babu Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration 085 0.05 138 005
8
Dividend Paud - - 0.00 -
9 |Mr. Rahul Rungta Company Secretary Salary 002 = 0.10 &
10 Mrs. Sangita Kuman Agarwal Company Secretary Salary 0.07 - - -
11 [Ms. Debolina Karmakar Company Secretary and Comphance Officer Salary 021 0.05 - -
12 JMr. Sanpv Paul Independent Director Siting fees 0.06 ~ 2 ke
3 |Mr. Gurvinder Singh Ahuja Independent Director Siting fees 0.06 = = =
14 |Mr. Mukesh Kumar Agarwal Independent Director Siting fees 0.03 = - -
15 |Mrs. Decpa Verma Independent Director Siting fees 0.06 - - -




KROSS Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2024

iAmounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwisc)
Note 41: Segment Disclosures

The Company 1s cngaged in manufacturing of critical o for ¢ cial vehicles and Tractors. The performance of the Company s assessed and revicwed by the Chief Operating Decisson Maker (*CODM ) as a single
operating segment and accordingly logistics and allied services 15 the only operating segment

The Compam 15 domiciled m India. and also provides services i India The amount of s revenue from exiemal customers split by location of the customers 1s shown m the table below

Revenue from external customers F‘; l::';’ ;::" F:‘; ‘:::;:’;:i;“
a i Ma N

India 6,131.53 487129

Outside India 7097 14.99

6,202.50 4.886.28

There arc no non-current asscts located in forcign countnics

Note 42: Disclesures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devdepment Act, 2006

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Principal amount remaning unpaid 10 the supplhers as at the end of the accounting vear 8991 5276
Interest duc thercon remaining unpad 1o supphicrs as at the end of the accounting vear wr 012
Interest paid m tenns of Secuon 16 along with the amount of pavments made to supphers
bevond the appointment dav duning the veas - =
Intcrest duc and pavable for the period of delavs in making pavment (which have been pad
bevond the appoiniment date during the vear but without addmg mierest specified under the act) - -
The amaunt of interest acorved and remaming unpaid at the end of the accounting year. 194 087
The above mformation have boen disclosed 1o the extent such supphers could be identificd by the management on the basis of information available with the Compam and the same has been relied upon by the
auditors
Note 43: Corporate social responsibility
For the year
Particulars c:mlrl.i For the _\r:r::ldtd
March 312924 | March 31,288
Amount required to be spent during the peniod/ vear 441 1.81
Amount approved by the board 1o be spent durmg the period ot 181
Amount spcnt dunng the penod on
(1) Construction/acquission of amy asset - -
(1) On purposcs other than (1) above 3m 333
[ Amount of expenditure incurred 370 333
Shartfall at the end of the perod 07 (1.52)f
[Total of previous vears shortfall 10 662
Cumulative Shortfall SAT .10
Nature of CSR actvitics
Actvtics specificd in Schedule V11 of the Compamics Act. 2013 370
Detauls of relatcd party ransactions Nil]

As per section 135(3) of the Companies Act. 2013, Inter alia. i every financial vear. at least two per ¢ent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial vears. in pursuance of its
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy The Company has computed the CSR amount required to spend for the financial vears 2023 and 2024 and is in the process of identifying the necessary projects and approval

Nate 44: Details of benami property

There have been no proceedmgs mitiated o pending

amsi the Compamy for holdmg am benams properny under the Benami Transacuons ( Prohsbion) Act. 198K (43 of 198%) and the rules made thercunder

Note 45: Analynical Ratios

atins \:;:('h 31,2024 \‘[:t‘(‘h 31, 2023 e Chanxe e

Current Rave 137 137 0.02%|NA

Debi-cquity rauo 0vs Lol 634%[NA

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 213 1.52 Increascd carming on account of overall growth

Return on mvestment 21.64%) 21 .62% NA

Return on Equity Ratio 221.26% 228.73% W|NA

Inventory lumover ratio 16.12 1934 -16.63%|NA

| Trade Receivables umover ratio 767 957 -19.78%|NA

Trade payables wumover ratio 12 85 1594 =19 36%|NA o

Nct capital tumover rauo | 1202 I -24 15%|Increase in revenuc along with increase in working capual following lower current liabilitics
Net profit ratio 7 24% 1431%|NA

Retun on Capital emploved 46.29% 13 70%|NA

2 As al As at
e March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 e e

Current Ratio 137 1.23 10 %2%|NA

Debt-cquity ratio 1.01 130 -22 24%|NA

Debt Service Coverage Rauo 152 174 -1291%|NA
IRnum on nvestment T 20.62% 1241% ) 74 21| Increased caming on account u;’-s\cnzllgr-;m_
’Rclum on Equity Ratio RO PP 134 18%|Increased canmng on account of overall growth

Inventony tumon ¢r ratio - 1934 il 1255 54 11*a]Increase i ratvo duc 1o faster churming of imventon

Trade Recenvables umover ratio T 957 Y 46 K2%f Increase i rato du o lower reenvable and mcrease m lwmover
Trade payables lumover rate o 14 36% Increase m ratio duc 10 ropayment of trade payable

Net capital wmover rabio o 13 13%/Increase on account of ncrease in current borrowngs to fund the busingss acquisibon
Net profit rano 4 0 54 73%|Incrcased cammng on account of overall growth

Rewm on Capual employed 40 7% 19 71% 106_32%] Increased caming on account of overall growth




KROSS Limited

Nutes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Ratios

Numerator

Denominator

Current Rauo

Current asscts

Current liabilivues

Dcbt-cquity ratio

Total debt

Total cquins

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Earnings available for debt senvice=Net Profit after taxes + Non
cash aling cx| s+Interest ex;

Retun on mvestment

Debt Service=Interest and lease payments + Principal Repayments

Income generated from imvested funds

Average mvesied funds

|Retum on Equity Rauo

Net Profits afier taxes — Preference Dividend

Avcrage tolal equity = (Opeming +Closing V2

Inventory wmover ratio

Salc of Product

Average mventory = {opeming Stock of FG and WIP+ closing Stock of FG and WIP)2

[Trade Recevables tumover ratio

Revenue from operations

Avcrage of trade recen ables = (Opening +Closing )2

Trade payables umover ratio

Opcrational cxpenses

Avcrage of wade pavables = (Openmng +Closing 12

Net caputal umover ratio

Revenue from operations

Working capital = Current asscis = current habiliues

Net profit ratio.

Net Profits afier taxes

ch\ cnuc from operavons

Retmn on Capual employed

lEnmmgs before mierest and taxes

l(‘:p-l:l emploved = Net worth + Long term borrowng + Lease habihity + Deferred tax liabiliey

Note 46: Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of the Company
pamy 1s the lessee and the lease agrecment arc dulv exceuted in favour of keasee 1. to the financial statements. are held i the name

The utle deed of the immovable

of the Company

where

{other than p

Note 47: Struck off companics
The Company docs not have any ransactions with struck off compamies under section 248 of the Compames Act 2013 or scction 360 of the Compamies Act 1936

Note 48: Borrowing sccurcd against current asscts
The Company has filed quarierly returns or statements with the banks in heu of the sanctioned workmng captal facilitics. which arc i agrecment with the books of account other than thosc as set out below

Qur Name of the Bank Particular of security provided INVSNRS S e ATy e R Diff Reapon far the. difference
hooks return
Finished Goods. Raw Matenals. Stores &
= = N » Stock reported to bank 1s gross figure
Jund2 HDFC BANK Limucd. ANIS BANK Limucd. DBS |Sparcs. Semi Finished Goods and Furnace, 49391 603 90 10999 bk ikl oI'GST! B
- BANK INDIA Limued. CANARA BANK Ol cte
Sundry Debtors 34489 3R -
Fimished Goods. Raw Maicnals, Stores & Sanck s s gk it figare
Sep-22 HDFC BANK Limucd. AXTS BANK Lunitcd. DBS |Spases. Semi Finished Goods and Fumace 0233 GIe38 AT L ks of GET
i BANK INDIA Limned. CANARA BANK Onl et
Sundry Debiors 39644 396.44 <
Fimishied Goods. Raw Matenals. Stores &
. & Stock reporied to bank is gross figure
Desti HDFC BANK Limitcd. AXIS BANK Lunncd. DBS |Sparcs. Semi Finished Goods and Furnace 58214 700 86 127.72 ik s chagive dGSTs %
= BANK INDIA Limied. CANARA BANK Ol cte
Sundn Debiors 43766 43700 .
Finished Goods. Raw Matcnals. Stores &
Spares. Semi Fimished Goods and Fumnace 62197 241 46 11949 :l::::. ';":'m""‘ :’ch o ('j‘;;.g"'“ figure
u
i HDFC BANK Limited. AXIS BANK Limued. DBS |24
R BANK INDIA Limicd. CANARA BANK Vanous penod end and vear end
Sundry Deblors 52778 1580 111.98)|adustmenis are accounted for post
submassion of the staement with the bank
Fimished Goods. Raw Maicnals, Stores & Stock 00 ek is i
Sparcs. Scmi Fimshed Goods and Furnace 73544 78381 7 s
ol which 1s inclusne of GST
s HDFC BANK Limited. AXIS BANK Limited. DBS |20 &
= BANK INDIA Limicd. CANARA BANK Vanous peniod end and vear end
Sundrv Debtors 646,09 36330 (%2.79) |adustments arc accounied for post
submission of the stalcment with the bank,
Finished Goods. Raw Maicnals. Storcs & Stock reporicd 1o bank is gross figare
Sep23 HDFC BANK Limited. AXIS BANK Limicd. DBS |Sparcs. Sermi Funshed Goods and Fumnace 770 601 R, 00 26,40 which 1c elusne of GST
2 BANK INDIA Limucd 04 cxe
Sundr Deblors 721.M 72170 =
Finished Goods. Raw Matcrials. Stores &
. % Stock reported to bank s gross figure
Bt HDFC BANK Lmiicd. AXIS BANK Lumucd. DBS |Sparcs. Scmi Funshed Goods and Fumace 78240 %1630 3390 which is inclisive ol GST
= BANK INDIA Lumied Oil et
Sundry Debiors 72940 729.40 -
|Faimished Goods. Raw Matenals. Stores &
Spares. Semi Finished Goods and Fumace 83518 #6220 1702 i':;':"l"xw.w“::";:.ry"‘ Reiis
Ma2é  |HDFCBANK Limicd, AXIS BANK Lumied DBS [0S
: BANK INDIA Limitcd :"“’"’ P
Sundn Debiors E1EL 69 8232 (249.36) ,"“"mw:;‘c ::ﬁw bank
along with reclassification of customers

Note 49: Wilful defaulter

The company s not declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or ather lender m accordance with the gmdelines on walful defaulicrs ssucd by the Reserve Bank of India

Note 30: Registration of Charges
There arc no charges or satisfaction which arc vet 10 be remistered with Regsstrar of Companics bevond the stattory penod




KROSS Limited
Nutes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwisc)

Nate 51: Utilisation of borrowed fund or share premium
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Compam 10 or in any other person(s) or entitviics). ncluding foreign entities
T d ). with the und ding. whether rded i wniting or otherwise, that the Intermediany shall. whether, directh or indircctly. lend or invest m other persons or entiies identified i any manner whatsoever by or
on behall of the Company (~Ulumate Beneficianes ) or pravide anv guaraniee. security or the like on behall of the Ulumate Beneficianes
No funds have been recened by the Company from any person(s) or entityiics). ncluding forcign entities (~Funding Parties™). with the understanding. whether recorded i wiiting or otherwisc. that the Company shall. whether.
dircetly or indurectly. lend or imvest m other persons or entitics identificd i any manncr whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Panty (“Ulumate Beneficiarics™) or provide amy guaranice. secunty or the like on behalf of the
Ultimatc Beneficrancs

Naote 32: Undisclosed Income
There 1s no mcome surrendered or disclosed as mcome duning the current or previous vear m the ax asscssmenis under Income Tax Act, 1961 that has not been recorded in the books of accounts

Note 33: Compliance with approval scheme and arvangement
The Company has not entered mnto anv scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous linancial vear

Note 84° Loan and advance to speaified person
Therc arc no loans and adx ances which are given 1o specificd person as defincd m Compamies Act 2013

Note 55: Details of crypte currency or virtual currency
The Company has not iraded or mvested m Crvpto currency or Virtwal Currency duning the current and previous linancial vear

Note 36: Valuation of PP&E, right-af-usc assets, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (mcluding nght-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous linancial vear

Note 57: Unlisation of horrewings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company has not used the borrowmgs from banks and financial nstitutions for the specilic purpose for winch it was taken during the current or previous financral vear

Note 58: Compliance with number of layers of (mpuln

The Company docsa't have any de G hence licd with the number of knvers prescnibed under clause (87) of scction 2 of the Act read with the Companics (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules.
2017 1s not apphicable
Note 59 The Code on Wages. 2019 and Code of Social Sccurty, 2020 (the Codes™) relating 1o cmp and p plovment benefits had recenved Presidenuial assent but the related rules thercol for quanufiing the

financial impact have not been notificd The Company will asscss the mpact of the Codes when the rules are notified and \MII Iu:utd. any rclated impact in the period the Codes become effecine

Note 60 The dividend paid by the Company 1s based on the profit available for distribution as reported m the financial statement. The compam had not declarcd or pad amy dividend duning the vear. therefore comphance with section 123 off
the Companies Act. 2013 1s not apphcable

Note 61: Impact of the Covid-1%
The Company has considered intemal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial staicments i cvaluating the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carmang amounts of trade recenvables The Compan has applied prudence m armvimg at the estimatcs and assumpuons The Compam s confident about the recoverabihity of these assets

Note 62: Reclassification
Previous ear figures have been regrouped reananged

d wherever necessan Further. there are no material regroupmg/ reclassifications during the vear
Note 63: Approval of financial statements
The financial statcments has been appros cd for ssue by the resolution of the board of dwectors dated Man 152024

For S.K.Naredi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Regn Number :003333C

For and on hehalf of U Bunl of Directors

Rahul Naredi Ras Anita Rai
Partner an & Managing Dar Whole tme dircclor
M No: 302632 DIN: 00312423 DIN- 00513329
-
d l ! l Q
/ Dcl n
Kunal Rm Deholina Karmakar

Jamshedpur, India Whole tme Dircctor & CFO Company Secrctan
May 15, 2024 DN 06863533 M No ACS6273%




